

| Introduction to Honey as Medicine | Historical Uses of Honey in Heoling | Nutritional Composition of Honey | Antibacterial & Antifungal Properties | Powerful Antioxidant Effects | Natural Anti-inflammatory Benefits | Boosting the Immune System | Wound Healing & Tissue Regeneration | Honey as a Cough Suppressant | Digestive Health & Stomach Relief | Prebiotic Effects and Gut Health | Antiviral Actions of Honey | Potential Anti-Cancer Benefits | Honey's Role in Blood Sugar Regulation | Cognitive Function & Brain Health | Topical & Internal Pain Relief | Hydration & Electrolyte Balance | Heart Health & Cholesterol Management | Oral Health: Plaque & Gum Care | Skin Care and Dermatological Uses | Honey as a Natural Energy Booster | Improving Sleep Quality Naturally | Mood Enhancement & Stress Reduction | Different Types of Honey and Their Potency | How to Use Honey Medicinally (Dosage & Methods) | Scientific Studies and Modern Research | Precautions & Contraindications | Nature's Sweet Medicine |

# A Therapeutic Guide to Ancient Remedies & Medicinal Benefits









ISBN - 978-81-976189-7-0



DR MAHESH KUMAR

WWW.THEMEDIFIT.COM



# **Medifit Educations**

# The Healing Power of Honey

# A Therapeutic Guide to Ancient Remedies and Medicinal Benefits

ISBN - 978-81-976189-7-0

e – Book

# Dr Mahesh Kumar



# **Medifit Publishing House**

A venture of Medifit Biologicals Private Limited Medifit Education, Prabhadevi, Mumbai, India

www.theMedifit.com

# **Copyright Notice**

All content within this book,

# Medifit Educations, The Healing Power of Honey

is © Dr. Mahesh Kumar & Medifit Publishing House, a venture of Medifit Biologicals Private Limited.

No part of this publication may be reproduced or copied in any form without theexpress written permission of the copyright holders.

#### **ISBN**

978-81-976189-7-0

e – Book

#### **Disclaimer**

The information provided in this book,

# Medifit Educations, The Healing Power of Honey

is for educational purposes only and is not intended as a substitute for professional medical advice, diagnosis, or treatment. Always seek the advice of your physician or other qualified health provider with any questions you may have regarding a medical condition.

#### **Table of Contents**

# **The Healing Power of Honey**

# A Therapeutic Guide to Ancient Remedies and Medicinal Benefits

- 1. Introduction to Honey as Medicine 1 2
- 2. Historical Uses of Honey in Healing 3 5
- 3. Nutritional Composition of Honey 6 7
- 4. Antibacterial & Antifungal Properties 8 9
- 5. Powerful Antioxidant Effects 10 10
- 6. Natural Anti-inflammatory Benefits 11 12
- 7. Boosting the Immune System 13 14
- 8. Wound Healing & Tissue Regeneration 15 18
- 9. Honey as a Cough Suppressant 19 20
- 10.Digestive Health & Stomach Relief 21 23
- 11. Prebiotic Effects and Gut Health 24 26
- 12. Antiviral Actions of Honey 27 28
- 13. Potential Anti-Cancer Benefits 29 30
- 14. Honey's Role in Blood Sugar Regulation 31 33
- 15. Cognitive Function & Brain Health 34 37
- 16. Topical & Internal Pain Relief 38 39
- 17. Hydration & Electrolyte Balance 40 41
- 18. Heart Health & Cholesterol Management 42 44
- 19. Oral Health: Plague & Gum Care 45 48
- 20.Skin Care and Dermatological Uses 49 51
- 21. Honey as a Natural Energy Booster 52 53
- 22.Improving Sleep Quality Naturally 54 56
- 23. Mood Enhancement & Stress Reduction 57 58
- 24. Different Types of Honey and Their Potency 59 64
- 25. How to Use Honey Medicinally (Dosage & Methods) 65 67
- 26. Scientific Studies and Modern Research 68 68
- 27. Precautions & Contraindications 69 70
- 28. Nature's Sweet Medicine 71 72

#### INTRODUCTION TO HONEY AS MEDICINE

Honey is a sweet liquid that bees produce using nectar from flowers. People throughout the world have hailed the health benefits of honey for thousands of years.

Honey is available raw or pasteurized and in a variety of color grades. On average, it contains about 80% sugar. People remove honey from the hive and bottle it directly, so it may also contain trace amounts of yeast, wax, and pollen.

Some studies have found that consuming raw honey may help with seasonal allergies, and others have concluded that honey can help wounds heal. In this article, we explore the many uses of honey, including its nutritional properties and some risks to consider.

#### **Benefits**

Modern science is finding evidence to support many of the historical uses of honey.

# **Healing wounds and burns**

A 2015 review found that honey may help heal burns, and a 2017 study found that the defensin-1 protein in honey promoted wound healing.

An earlier study had found that applying medical grade honey to the site of infections had no advantage over the administration of antibiotics — and applying honey actually increased the risk of infection in people with diabetes.

It is worth noting that many products such as face creams, deodorants, and shampoos contain honey in varying amounts.

# Preventing acid reflux

Honey might help ward off acid reflux. Honey's health effects proposed that honey may help line the esophagus and stomach, possibly reducing the upward flow of stomach acid and undigested food. This suggestion, however, was not supported by clinical research.

The upward flow of stomach acid can lead to gastroesophageal reflux disease, which can involve inflammation, acid reflux, and heartburn.

# Relieving cold and cough symptoms

Honey was more effective than a placebo at reducing children's coughs during the night.

Two years later, another study evaluated whether a honey and milk solution could treat acute coughs in children. The authors concluded that the solution appeared to be at least as effective as two over-the-counter products marketed for this purpose.

### **Abstract**

In addition to being used as food, honey has been used as an alternative medicine for thousands of years. Honey has a great potential to be used as a medicine because it is not suitable for micro-organisms, it is very acidic and has a very high sugar content, which causes an osmotic effect that prevents the growth of some micro-organisms, moreover, in some honey, hydrogen peroxide is found, which has a strong antibacterial effect. However, properties and appearances of honey vary greatly according to the floral source in which the bee collects the nectar, so some honey also have a strong antioxidant and anti-inflammatory activity. Recently, there are several studies, mainly in vitro, that prove the effectiveness of honey for various medical purposes due to its components and its antibacterial, anti-inflammatory, antioxidant, antiviral, antifungal, and anticancer properties.

### **Medicinal history of honey**

Evidence from Stone Age paintings shows treatment of disease with bee product such as honey originated from 8000 years ago. Ancient scrolls, tablets and books-Sumerian clay tablets (6200 BC), Egyptian papyri (1900–1250 BC), Veda (Hindu scripture) 5000 years, Holy Koran, Bible, and Hippocrates (460–357 BC) illustrated that honey had been widely used as a drug. The Qur'an vividly indicated the activity of therapeutic value of honey. The Lord has inspired the bees, to build their hives in hills, on trees, and in man's habitations, from within their bodies comes a drink of varying colors, wherein is healing for humankind, verily in this is a sign, for those who give thought. Although a number of papers have been published about honey, most of them have focused on the biochemical analysis, food, and nonfood commercial utilization. Honey was used for variety of disease conditions including eye diseases, asthma, throat infections, tuberculosis, thirst, hiccups, fatigue, dizziness, hepatitis, constipation, worm infestation, piles, eczema, healing of ulcers, and wounds in traditional medicine.

# **Properties**

One tablespoon of honey contains 64 calories, 17.2 grams (g) of sugar, and no fiber, fat, or protein. Honey has a slightly acidic average pH level of 3.9, and research indicates that this acidity may help prevent the growth of bacteria.

It is worth noting that the exact physical properties of honey depend on the flora used to make it.

When stored in an airtight container, honey has no expiration date.

#### HISTORICAL USES OF HONEY IN HEALING

The uses of honey span from ancient rituals and medicinal applications to today's culinary and wellness trends, showcasing its timeless value. From cultural traditions to modern health benefits, honey continues to enrich our lives.

Honey has been treasured for thousands of years, valued not only as a sweetener but as a powerful remedy and symbol of prosperity across ancient cultures. From the rituals of the Egyptians to its place in Greek and Roman mythology, honey has left a sweet legacy that endures in our lives today.

This golden nectar has found its way from ancient medicine cabinets and religious offerings to modern wellness practices, beauty routines, and kitchen staples.

# **Honey in Ancient Civilizations**

# **Indian Ayurveda and Traditional Chinese Medicine**

Honey's importance also extended to the East, where it became a staple in Indian Ayurveda and Traditional Chinese Medicine. In Ayurveda, honey was considered a natural remedy for respiratory and digestive issues, believed to balance the body's energies and promote health. Practitioners in Traditional Chinese Medicine similarly viewed honey as a warming food, using it to support the immune system and overall vitality.

In both cultures, honey's medicinal applications were highly valued, establishing it as a cornerstone in traditional Eastern health practices that persist in modern wellness today.

# **Egyptian Uses**

In ancient Egypt, honey held a prestigious role, treasured both as a sacred offering and a healing remedy. Egyptians incorporated honey into burial rituals, placing jars in tombs to sustain souls in the afterlife, symbolizing purity, prosperity, and immortality.

Honey was also a staple in traditional medicine due to its natural antibacterial properties, which ancient Egyptians relied on to treat wounds, burns, and digestive ailments. It was commonly applied to wounds to protect against infection and promote healing. Beyond medicine, honey appeared in Egyptian art, religious offerings, and even as currency in trade exchanges, demonstrating its multifaceted value.

#### **Greek and Roman Traditions**

The Greeks and Romans similarly wove honey into their daily lives, using it in both culinary practices and mythology. Greek mythology revered honey as the "nectar of the gods," believed to impart wisdom and vitality, and it played a role in religious rituals as well as in sweetening foods.

The Greeks valued honey in their diet and used it medicinally, creating a tradition of honey as a healing agent that influenced later civilizations. Roman society, meanwhile, used honey extensively as a primary sweetener, flavoring wine, pastries, and various savory dishes. Honey was essential in their beauty routines and medicinal practices, and Romans believed it could enhance health and longevity.

# **Medicinal Applications Throughout History**

#### **Ancient to Medieval Medicine**

Honey's medicinal reputation stretches back to ancient times, where it was one of the earliest remedies used for healing purposes. Ancient Egyptian, Greek, and Roman physicians prized honey for its ability to treat wounds and prevent infections, recognizing its natural antibacterial and anti-inflammatory properties. Hippocrates, the famed Greek physician, prescribed honey for various ailments, including ulcers, sore throats, and fever.

By the medieval period, honey had become a staple in folk medicine throughout Europe, often used to treat gastrointestinal disorders, skin conditions, and even fatigue. Its versatility in treating a broad range of conditions made honey a vital component in the medicinal practices of many cultures, solidifying its reputation as a "medicine of the gods."

# **Honey's Antimicrobial Properties**

Long before the discovery of antibiotics, honey was widely used as a natural antiseptic. Its high sugar content creates a hostile environment for bacteria, while the presence of hydrogen peroxide, produced by enzymes in honey, provides further antibacterial effects.

In ancient and medieval times, honey was applied directly to wounds and burns to prevent infection and promote healing, a practice that science has since validated. Modern research confirms that honey, particularly Manuka honey, has powerful antimicrobial effects effective against even antibiotic-resistant bacteria. This enduring belief in honey's healing properties, combined with scientific validation, has helped secure honey's place in modern medicine and natural health practices.

Honey's long history as a medicinal staple reflects the trust ancient cultures placed in its healing powers, a trust that has continued into today's wellness and health fields. Whether used for wound care, digestive health, or as an immune booster, honey's medicinal applications highlight its resilience as a natural remedy across centuries.

# **Honey's Healing History**

It appears that the wound care field is not immune to this concept. In this issue, focus on the revival of honey as a wound care treatment. The ancient Egyptians used honey as a wound treatment as early as 3000 BC and it has been found in Egyptian tombs. Although it was said to be normal in appearance, I was told that none of the researchers had the courage to taste it. Honey was an integral part of the "Three Healing Gestures" used by the Egyptians. This included washing the wound, applying a "plaster" (made from honey, animal fat, and vegetable fiber), and bandaging the wound—not much different from the treatments used today. Recent testing of this Egyptian "wound salve" revealed that it is strongly bactericidal to Staphylococcus aureus, Escherichia coli, and coliform bacteria. This is partly the basis for why honey is currently being used. Honey contains antibacterial agents that are active against nearly all bacteria, including common resistant strains found today. Interestingly, the antibacterial activity of honey is not solely a result of its viscosity as many have presumed. demonstrate that honey's antibacterial effect is still present even when diluted by wound fluid. found that honey from the Leptospermum scoparium plant has more antibacterial activity than honey from other sources. Raw honey found in grocery stores is not sterile and should not be used on wounds—it contains bacterial spores, which might not be the best thing to put on an open wound. However, the honey described in this issue is sterile and does not present that problem. The experience at my clinic with the use of antibacterial honey is that it reduces wound pain, odor, and exudate, and also improves healing. Patients readily accept the treatment as well.

#### **NUTRITIONAL COMPOSITION OF HONEY**

Honey is a natural ingredient used for its sweetness, energy and potential health benefits. It is mainly used for human consumption (but also in some cosmetics) either as pure honey or as an ingredient in other food products such as desserts, cereals and juices. There are hundreds of different honey types such as clover, acacia or manuka, depending on the botanical origin. This article explores how honey is made, describes its composition, and discusses research on its reported health effects.

#### **Abstract**

Due to the variation of botanical origin honey differs in appearance, sensory perception and composition. The main nutritional and health relevant components are carbohydrates, mainly fructose and glucose but also about 25 different oligosaccharides. Although honey is a high carbohydrate food, its glycemic index varies within a wide range from 32 to 85, depending on the botanical source. It contains small amounts of proteins, enzymes, amino acids, minerals, trace elements, vitamins, aroma compounds and polyphenols. The review covers the composition, the nutritional contribution of its components, its physiological and nutritional effects. It shows that honey has a variety of positive nutritional and health effects, if consumed at higher doses of 50 to 80 g per intake.

# The Nutritional Value of Honey

# Average Composition of Honey

Honey is primarily fructose (38%), glucose (31%), water (17%), maltose (7%), and small amounts of trisaccharides, other higher carbohydrates, sucrose, minerals, vitamins, and enzymes.

# • Vitamins - trace amounts

Thiamin, Riboflavin, Niacin, Pantothenic acid, Vitamin B-6, Vitamin B-12, Folate, Vitamin C, Vitamin A, Vitamin D, Vitamin E, Vitamin K

#### Minerals - trace amounts

Calcium, Copper, Iron, Magnesium. Manganese, Phosphorous, Potassium, Sodium, Zinc

# • Antioxidants - enzymatic and non-enzymatic

Catalase, ascorbic acid, flavonoids

# The nutritional composition of honey

Season, environmental conditions, processing techniques and varieties of flower nectar can all influence the composition of honey but, essentially, the main nutritional constituents are carbohydrates. In addition to water, honey contains very small amounts of protein, vitamins, minerals, trace elements, enzymes and polyphenols, including flavonoids from pollen, which can help identify the honey origin. December 2001 and specifies that the maximum water content of honey must be 20% for it to be an authentic food product.

Honey is typically a smooth liquid containing imperceptible tiny crystals. However, factors such as its origin, low storage temperature, longer storage time and higher glucose content, can all lead to crystallisation; larger crystals form and the texture becomes crunchy. The process can be momentarily reversed by gentle heating. However, heating and filtering of honey (to purify) may negatively affect its properties by for example darkening the colour, destroying enzymes, and removing health-beneficial antioxidants.

#### **ANTIBACTERIAL & ANTIFUNGAL PROPERTIES**

# **Antibacterial and Antifungal Activity of Different Honeys**

**Background:** With the irrational and massive use of Antibiotics in underdeveloped and developing countries, resultantly there was increased Resistance to Antibiotics and with the increased interest in herbal medicine and use of honey for various therapeutic purposes has led to the search for new antibacterial honeys. Hence a study was conducted to assess the antibacterial and fungicidal activity of six honeys locally produced under natural and farm environment and their comparison with the commercially available therapeutic honeys.

**Methods:** An agar dilution method was used to assess the activity of honeys against 15 bacteria and one yeast. The honeys were tested at eight concentrations ranging from 1% to 50%.

**Results:** All 15 bacteria were inhibited by all honeys used in this study with only the yeast Candida albicans not inhibited by the honeys at 20%. Little antibacterial activity was seen at honey concentrations <5%, with minimal inhibition at 5%. No honey was able to produce complete inhibition of bacterial growth at concentration up to 20% but with the increase in concentration 40% honey obtained from wild bee produces remarkable inhibition. had the overall good activity but the activity of naturally produced (by wild bee) local honey was even better than those. But the locally produced honeys by commercial beekeepers had poor inhibitory activity for some, but not for all bacteria.

**Conclusions:** Honeys other than those commercially available as antibacterial honeys can have equivalent antibacterial activity if they are produced through hygienic methods. The newly identified antibacterial honeys may prove to be a valuable source of future therapeutic honeys.

# **Aantibacterial activity of Honey**

#### **Abstract**

Indeed, medicinal importance of honey has been documented in the world's oldest medical literatures, and since the ancient times, it has been known to possess antimicrobial property as well as wound-healing activity. The healing property of honey is due to the fact that it offers antibacterial activity, maintains a moist wound condition, and its high viscosity helps to provide a protective barrier to prevent infection. Its immunomodulatory property is relevant to wound repair too. The antimicrobial activity in most honeys is due to the enzymatic production of hydrogen peroxide. However, another kind of honey, called non-peroxide honey (viz., manuka honey), displays significant antibacterial effects even when the hydrogen peroxide activity is blocked. Its mechanism may

be related to the low pH level of honey and its high sugar content (high osmolarity) that is enough to hinder the growth of microbes. The medical grade honeys have potent in vitro bactericidal activity against antibiotic-resistant bacteria causing several life-threatening infections to humans. But, there is a large variation in the antimicrobial activity of some natural honeys, which is due to spatial and temporal variation in sources of nectar. Thus, identification and characterization of the active principles may provide valuable information on the quality and possible therapeutic potential of honeys (against several health disorders of humans), and hence we discussed the medicinal property of honeys with emphasis on their antibacterial activities.

**Keywords:** Antibacterial activity; Antimicrobial agents; Antimicrobial property; Glucose oxidase; Honey; Immunomodulatory property; Medical-grade honey; Medicinal property; Non-peroxide effect; Wound healing property.

# Antifungal activity of raw honey

# **Abstract**

The ingredients of honey have been reported to exert antioxidant, antimicrobial, anti-inflammatory, anti-proliferative, anticancer, and anti-metastatic effects. The present investigation aimed to study the antifungal activity of raw honey of three honeybee species collected from the Kumaon region of Uttarakhand. Honey samples were collected and assayed against Fusarium oxysporum fungal species by Kirby–Bauer disk diffusion technique. Among all the honey samples. Apis dorsata honey was effective against the Fusarium oxysporum. The inhibition zone clearly showed that honey obtained from raw Apis dorsata had the highest antifungal activity, while honey samples from other species showed no antifungal activity.

#### Conclusion

Overall, this study highlights the significance and potential uses of raw Apis dorsata honey in alternative medicine and healthcare by confirming its antifungal potential. Hence this research gives evidence that raw honey of Apis dorsata could play a potential therapeutic role. It could be one of the best organic alternatives to traditional drugs and fungicides in the treatment of disease caused by inflammatory and antimicrobial agents.

#### **POWERFUL ANTIOXIDANT EFFECTS**

# Honey: A Powerful Natural Antioxidant and Its Possible Mechanism of Action

Honey, a supersaturated concentrated solution with complex constituents, has been used as a therapeutic agent since ancient times. Natural products have been used as a substitute for various conventional treatments and drug discoveries. Different in vivo and in vitro studies have shown properties of honey including antioxidant, antibacterial, anti-inflammatory, anti-cancerous, and much more. Therapeutic properties of honey greatly depend on its constituent composition which may vary based on various factors like species of bee, environmental conditions, type of flower, and processing methods. Oxidative stress due to cellular metabolism and other physio-biochemical activities of the body demand the necessity of antioxidants in diet which can be fulfilled by honey. Antioxidant and other biological properties of honey are greatly determined by the polyphenol composition. This chapter comprises honey composition, type, antioxidant properties, and antioxidant mechanism of honey according to different research studies.

#### **ABSTRACT**

In order to examine the antioxidant activity of 15 natural honeys of different origin ABTS method was used, total phenol content and dry matter content of honey samples were determined as well. Honeys were collected from different locations of Slovakia, Poland and Serbia and were represented as monofloral and multifloral samples which originated from Poland and Slovakia, forest samples originated from Serbia and honeydew honey. Mean values of antioxidant activity observed in samples of honeys ranged from 0.62 to 4.63 mmol/kg. The highest antioxidant activity was detected at buckwheat honey and the lowest was shown at acacia honey. By observing the impact of individual honey samples on antioxidant activity was found that the sample has a highly statistically significant effect. 10 homogeneous groups which varied in antioxidant activity among each other were established by all 15 samples. Antioxidant activity of honeys could be a positive influence factor in terms of honey differentiation, especially in case of the forest honeys collected from different places. Monofloral and multifloral honeys established 5 homogenous groups, but in the case of several multifloral honeys which originated from different places of Poland and Slovakia no statistical significant differences were found.

#### NATURAL ANTI-INFLAMMATORY BENEFITS

# **Anti-inflammatory properties**

Honey also has anti-inflammatory properties that can aid with skin conditions such as acne or psoriasis.

A 2017 study on the honey of the stingless bee found that the raw honey has a strong anti-inflammatory effect. Another review of studies supports this, finding that most honey varieties have anti-inflammatory properties.

# **Anti-aging effects**

According to an older study, honey can help with improving the skin's appearance. The authors state that it can help stop wrinkles from forming, keep the skin looking young, and prevent infections on the skin that can accelerate aging.

# Honey and its nutritional and anti-inflammatory value

#### **Abstract**

Inflammation is the main key role in developing chronic diseases including cancer, cardiovascular diseases, diabetes, arthritis, and neurodegenerative diseases which possess a huge challenge for treatment. With massively compelling evidence of the role played by nutritional modulation in preventing inflammation-related diseases, there is a growing interest into the search for natural functional foods with therapeutic and preventive actions. Honey, a nutritional healthy product, is produced mainly by two types of bees: honeybee and stingless bee. Since both types of honey possess distinctive phenolic and flavonoid compounds, there is recently an intensive interest in their biological and clinical actions against inflammation-mediated chronic diseases. This review shed light specifically on the bioavailability and bioaccessibility of honey polyphenols and highlighted their roles in targeting inflammatory pathways in gastrointestinal tract disorders, edema, cancer, metabolic and cardiovascular diseases and gut microbiota.

#### **Background**

Honeybees, which are named in Latin as Apis, use the collected nectar from plants to produce honey after regurgitation and digestion of nectar. Several biological compounds from honeybees are added during honey formation. Honeybees store honey to be used during winter. Their wings fan the honey to evaporate the water content in nectar to avoid fermentation of honey. Honey has been used to treat a variety of ailments such as gastric disturbance, skin burn and ulcers. Currently, two types of honey are produced globally: traditional Apis mellifera honey and stingless bee honey. Honey has been reported to have

healthy benefits which are antioxidant, anti-proliferative, and anti-bacterial. The purpose of this review is to summarize another aspect of the honey's health benefit which is the anti-inflammatory studies of honey underlying the possible mechanisms involved in the response to honey supplementation on inflammation-mediated chronic diseases as proposed by a wide collection of scientific papers in the literature.

# Potential health benefits of honey against inflammation

Innate immunity relies strongly on inflammation which is defined generally as the natural response to cellular injury.

The biological changes are:

- increased blood flow and capillary distillation,
- leukocyte infiltration, and
- releasing localized chemoattractants to recruit immunity cells.

The main objectives of these changes are to eliminate the pathogen agents and repair the damaged tissue. However, non-resolving inflammation as result of chronic bacterial infection (LPS infusion) or obesity or aging paves the onset of low-grade chronic inflammation which subsequently develop various chronic diseases. In this context, supporting the consumption of natural products in favor of resolving inflammation and supporting hemostasis is the main reason for examining these products on numerous trials.

Honey has been suggested as an immune-modulatory agent with dual role:

- anti-inflammatory activities through downregulating the inflammatory transcription factors (NF-kB and MAPK) and/or suppressing the production of pro-inflammatory cytokines, and
- stimulate the production of inflammatory mediators such as prostaglandin E2 (PGE2) and cyclooxygenase-2 (COX-2).

Various models of inflammation treated with honey have been studied to explain the honey bioactivities towards inflammation. represent the schematic diagram on the inhibition of honey on various reactions in the inflammatory process.

#### **BOOSTING THE IMMUNE SYSTEM**

# Immunity boosting benefits of raw honey

Eating raw honey in winter can help boost your immunity. Here is how it helps:

#### Rich in antioxidants

It is a golden treasure trove of natural goodness, and is an excellent winter friend which may significantly boost our immune system. It is high in antioxidants, including flavonoids and phenolic acids, which work as strong shields against damaging free radicals, as found in a study published in the Oxidative Medicine and Cellular Longevity. These free radicals, which are unstable chemicals, can damage our cells, causing oxidative stress and reduced immune system response. But its antioxidants properties help to reduce inflammation, strengthen our immune function defences, and protect our cells from oxidative damage by neutralising these damaging radicals. Thus, it is especially important during winter when the immune system can be more vulnerable due to factors like cold weather, less sunlight, and seasonal stress.

# High in antibacterial and antiviral properties

It is a natural antimicrobial powerhouse with antibacterial and antiviral properties, making it an effective weapon against ailments, as found in a study published in the journal Molecules. Its natural components, including hydrogen peroxide, work together to kill harmful bacteria and viruses. This powerful antibacterial effect can help prevent or relieve the symptoms of common winter woes like colds, flu, and respiratory infections. Incorporating it into your daily routine will help strengthen your body's defence mechanisms and protect your health during the colder months of the year.

#### Soothes sore throats and coughs

The cold winter months can cause sore throats and chronic coughs. It is a natural demulcent, protects and soothes the inflamed throat, as found in a study published in the National Journal of Physiology. This relaxing action relieves coughing and irritation in the respiratory tract, which can be worsened by exposure to cold air. Plus, its antibacterial properties help treat the infections that usually cause these symptoms, offering comfort and boosting faster recovery.

# **Boosts energy and vitality**

Winter's shorter days and chilly temperatures can make us feel tired and lethargic. Raw honey, a natural energy elixir, provides a rapid yet effective solution. "Its unique blend of glucose and fructose provides a quickly available source of power that the body may easily absorb," says nutritionist Rakshit

Mehra. This energy-rich boost fights winter tiredness by keeping us energised and attentive. Maintaining our energy levels allows us to build our immune system and stronger against the attacks of winter ailments, resulting in maximum health and well-being.

# Regulates body temperature

Raw honey is a source of winter warmth, quite literally. "It has thermogenic characteristics, which means it increases heat generation within the body," says the expert. This gradual warming effect can be especially beneficial in the colder months, when our bodies are more prone to cold-related ailments. Incorporating this natural sweetener into your diet can help regulate your body temperature, keep you warm, and improve your overall health.

# How to include raw honey to boost immunity in winters?

Here are some easy ways to incorporate it into your daily routine.

- **Warm honey water:** Mix a tablespoon of raw honey in a glass of warm water. Drinking this in the morning on an empty stomach helps kick start metabolism, boost energy, and cleanse the body.
- **Honey and lemon tea:** Combine raw honey with lemon juice in warm water. This tea is a great source of vitamin C and antioxidants, helping to strengthen the immune system and soothe a sore throat.
- **Honey with ginger:** Add raw honey to a cup of ginger tea. Ginger has anti-inflammatory properties, and combined with honey, it can help fight off infections, reduce inflammation, and ease cold symptoms.
- Honey with cinnamon: Mix raw honey with cinnamon powder and consume it in the morning. Both honey and cinnamon have antimicrobial and anti-inflammatory effects that can help prevent infections during winter.
- **Honey in smoothies:** Add raw honey to your smoothies or yoghurt for an added boost of nutrients and flavour. Combine it with fruits like oranges or berries, which are high in vitamin C, to enhance immunity.
- **Honey and turmeric paste:** Mix raw honey with turmeric powder to make a paste and take it as a natural remedy to help with colds, coughs, and inflammation. Turmeric has immune-boosting properties, and honey acts as a carrier to deliver the benefits.
- **Honey with garlic:** Combine raw honey with crushed garlic for a potent, immunity-boosting tonic. Garlic has powerful antibacterial and antiviral properties, and the honey makes it more palatable.

#### **WOUND HEALING & TISSUE REGENERATION**

Honey has healed wounds since ancient times, with Sumerians first recognising its therapeutic potential around 2100-2000 BC. This natural substance offers remarkable benefits for wound healing and skin health through its unique composition of approximately 82% water, carbohydrates, proteins, antioxidants, and minerals.

The healing properties of honey dressings for wounds stem from several mechanisms. Its high sugar content creates an osmotic effect that draws fluid from damaged tissues, reducing swelling and speeding recovery. Furthermore, honey's low pH (between 3.2 and 4.5) promotes oxygen release while fighting bacteria. Medical-grade honey particularly shows effectiveness against antibiotic-resistant bacteria, including MRSA and vancomycin-resistant Enterococci. For those seeking honey benefits for the skin, this natural substance also stimulates critical healing processes like lymphocytic activity and angiogenesis, making honey for healing skin conditions increasingly popular in modern healthcare.

Honey works through multiple mechanisms to speed up wound healing and tissue repair. Its viscous, jelly-like consistency forms a protective barrier when applied to a wound, shielding the area from external contaminants and preventing dehydration.

The healing power of honey primarily comes from its unique properties that create an optimal environment for recovery:

- **Osmotic cleansing effect:** The high sugar content draws fluid up through tissues, pulling debris and bacteria out of the wound. This natural flow flushes away slough, necrotic tissue, and microorganisms.
- **Enhanced tissue oxygenation:** Honey's low pH increases oxygen delivery to wounded tissues, accelerating healing.
- **Hydrogen peroxide production:** When diluted with wound fluid, honey produces hydrogen peroxide that acts as a natural antiseptic without damaging healthy tissue.
- **Stimulation of immune response:** Honey prompts leukocytes to release cytokines, which initiate the tissue repair process and boost the overall immune response.
- **Enhanced cell growth:** The controlled release of hydrogen peroxide stimulates fibroblast proliferation, which is essential for tissue regeneration.
- **Removal of free radicals:** Flavonoids and aromatic acids in honey eliminate harmful free radicals that damage tissue.

15

Essentially, honey creates ideal conditions for the body's natural healing processes. It stimulates angiogenesis (formation of new blood vessels) and promotes re-epithelialisation, where new skin cells grow over the wound surface.

Along with these benefits, honey dressings have shown remarkable success in treating chronic wounds. Medical-grade honey has become a first-line treatment in some surgical units rather than a last resort. Honey's healing properties make it effective for various wounds, including burns, diabetic ulcers, leg ulcers, surgical wounds, and even cases threatened with amputation.

# Impact of Honey on Tissue Regeneration and its Application

# **Description**

Honey, a substance revered for its natural sweetness, has emerged as a powerful ally in the realm of wound healing. This golden elixir, long valued for its culinary and medicinal properties, has increasingly captured the attention of researchers and medical professionals due to its remarkable potential to expedite the healing process and promote tissue repair. As an ancient remedy that has stood the test of time, honey's application in modern wound care showcases the harmonious synergy between tradition and scientific innovation.

# History of healing

Honey's use in wound healing dates back centuries, with civilizations from ancient Egypt to Greece recognizing its beneficial properties. Historical records reveal its application as a topical treatment for wounds and burns. The healing properties of honey were likely observed empirically before being embraced in various cultural traditions.

# The science behind honey's healing powers

The effectiveness of honey in wound healing can be attributed to its multifaceted composition. Honey is inherently hygroscopic, meaning it draws moisture from the environment, creating an environment conducive to wound healing. Its low water content inhibits bacterial growth, while its natural acidity contributes to an unfavorable environment for pathogens. Furthermore, honey's enzymatic content, particularly glucose oxidase, generates hydrogen peroxide a mild antiseptic agent that aids in disinfection.

# Promoting granulation and tissue regeneration

Honey's unique properties extend to its ability to promote granulation—the formation of new tissue—and facilitate tissue regeneration. Honey's high sugar content creates an osmotic effect, drawing excess fluid from wounds and reducing swelling. This assists in creating an optimal environment for cells

involved in wound healing, such as fibroblasts and keratinocytes, to flourish and promote tissue repair.

# **Antibacterial and anti-inflammatory actions**

One of the most remarkable attributes of honey lies in its broad-spectrum antibacterial effects. Various compounds in honey, including hydrogen peroxide and phenolic compounds, contribute to its ability to inhibit the growth of bacteria and prevent infection. Moreover, honey's anti-inflammatory properties help mitigate excessive inflammation at the wound site, aiding in the overall healing process.

# **Evidence-based practice**

Modern research has validated honey's traditional uses in wound healing. Numerous clinical studies have highlighted its efficacy in managing various wound types, including chronic ulcers, burns, surgical wounds, and even infected wounds. Evidence suggests that honey can accelerate wound healing, reduce infection rates, and enhance overall wound care outcomes.

# **Challenges and considerations**

While honey's potential in wound healing is promising, challenges such as standardization of honey types, variability in honey's composition, and patient allergies must be considered. Collaboration between medical professionals, researchers, and beekeepers is crucial to ensure safe and effective application.

In conclusion, honey's journey from ancient remedy to modern wound care exemplifies the integration of traditional wisdom with scientific exploration. Its multifaceted composition, encompassing antibacterial, anti- inflammatory, and tissue-regenerating properties, has positioned honey as a valuable adjunct to conventional wound care methods. As research continues to uncover the depths of honey's healing potential, its role in promoting wound healing stands as a testament to the enduring power of nature's remedies.

# A Critical Review and Perspective of Honey in Tissue Engineering and Clinical Wound Healing

#### **Abstract**

**Significance:** Historically, honey has been regarded as a potent agent in bacterial inhibition and wound healing. An increased prevalence of antibiotic resistant pathogens spurred an initial resurgence in honey's clinical popularity, with it quickly finding a place in wound care and regenerative medicine. However, this renewed usage demanded a need for improved delivery and overall research of its bioactive properties. This review provides an overview of the antibacterial properties and clinical use of honey.

**Recent Advances:** The past and present clinical use of honey is noted, focusing specifically on burns and ulcers, as these are the most common applications of the natural agent. While honey is often used without modification clinically, there are also commercially available products ranging from dressings to gels, which are discussed.

**Critical Issues:** Despite these products growing in popularity, the need for improved delivery and a structure to support wound healing could improve the treatment method.

**Future Directions:** Tissue engineering scaffolds can provide an alternative method of honey delivery with research focusing primarily on electrospun scaffolds, hydrogels, and cryogels. Current studies on these scaffolds are discussed with respect to their advantages and potential for future clinical work. Overall, this review provides a comprehensive overview of the properties of honey, its current use in wound healing, and the potential for future incorporation into tissue-engineered scaffolds to provide an innovative wound healing agent.

#### **HONEY AS A COUGH SUPPRESSANT**

Drinking tea or warm lemon water mixed with honey is often used to soothe a sore throat. But honey alone may work as well as medicines available without a prescription to lessen coughing.

In several studies, people with upper respiratory tract infections were given honey to lessen coughing. The honey seemed to lessen their coughing and help them sleep better. These studies included children.

In these studies, honey appeared to work as well as diphenhydramine (die-fen-HI-druh-meen), though higher-quality studies are needed to confirm the results. Diphenhydramine is a common ingredient in medicines available without a prescription to lessen coughing. Since honey is safe for people over age 1 year, it might be worth a try.

**And remember:** Coughing isn't all bad. It helps clear mucus from your airway if you have an infection or an allergy, for example. If you or your child is otherwise healthy, there's usually no reason to try to stop occasional coughing.

# Can honey help a cough?

Research suggests that honey may help alleviate a cough. And it may be even more effective than some cough medicines.

Before we dive into the research, it's important to note that most of the research on honey and coughs has been done in children. This makes it harder to know how effective it is in adults.

For example, one large review study found that honey helps with both cough frequency and intensity in children ages 1 through 18. And when the researchers compared honey to other treatment, they found that honey was:

- Better than no treatment (or placebo)
- Better than diphenhydramine
- Similar in effect as dextromethorphan
- Similar in effect as salbutamol

But keep in mind, depending on what's causing your cough and the length and severity of your symptoms, you might need antibiotics to treat your cough. Talk with a healthcare professional if your cough lasts longer than 2 weeks.

# How does honey work to help a cough?

There are a few ways honey may help treat coughs. It:

- Contains antioxidants, which may help lower inflammation in your throat
- Contains antibacterial properties that may help prevent infection
- May decrease the amount of mucus the body produces
- Has a thick texture, which may help with throat irritation that produces the urge to cough

# How much honey should you take for a cough?

Some studies on honey for coughs used around half a teaspoon (2.5 mL), and others closer to 2 tsp (10 mL). In most studies, participants took the honey before bed. If you have questions about how much honey is safe for you or your child to take for a cough, talk with your primary care provider or your child's pediatrician.

Children ages 1 and older can be given 0.5 to 1 teaspoon (2.5 to 5 milliliters) of honey to treat a cough. The honey can be given as is or added to other liquids, such as juice, to lessen its strength. Due to the risk of infant botulism — a rare but serious form of food poisoning — never give honey to a child younger than age 1.

Honey can be taken on its own or mixed into warm water or tea. Some people like to add a squeeze of lemon for flavor.

#### **DIGESTIVE HEALTH & STOMACH RELIEF**

# **Benefits of Honey for Digestion**

Honey is a powerhouse of many minerals, enzymes and amino acids. People have known the health benefits of honey due to it's anti-bacterial and healing properties, and use it for curing a variety of conditions like - treating sore throats, skin nourishment, relieving coughs, reducing inflammation, and maintaining your cholesterol levels. Now there is one more addition to this diverse list, it is very good for digestion. Research says that acid reflux can happen due to radicals which damage cells lining the digestive tract. Consuming honey here can play an imperative role as it controls damage by removing free radicals.

- Honey contains certain enzymes that acts as a catalyst in the digestion process, especially, to disintegrate the carbohydrates and sugars.
- Honey helps in getting rid of diarrhea because of its slow passage than other regular sugars, through the stomach and intestine. Research show that the intake of honey by babies and infants have exponentially reduced the frequency of diarrhea.
- There are some good bacteria, collectively known as gut flora, present in the digestive system, which is responsible for a good digestive system.
- Honey contains a compound called methylglyoxal that provides honey the anti-bacterial properties. This helps in curing bacterial infections in the stomach. The main bacteria that causes digestive disorders is the Helicobacter pylori. Studies have shown that honey is proven to control the growth of this bacteria in the stomach.
- Honey helps in boosting the immune system that helps in preventing any stomach related disease in the future.
- Have one or two tablespoons of honey every day.
- You can also consume hot water by adding a tinge of honey (one tablespoon) every morning.
- You can make a paste of honey and cinnamon powder. Apply this paste on your bread, instead of applying jelly or jam. Eat this bread for breakfast every day for effective results.
- If you are a yoghurt fan and have yoghurt with every meal, add 1-2 spoons of honey to help you with problems of acid reflux and indigestion.
- A mixture of vinegar and honey for digestion has been popular for many years. Add 2 tablespoons of apple cider vinegar and 1 tablespoon of honey to 8 ounces of water and drink it before every meal.

# Importance of Honey in Supporting Gut Health.

# **Prebiotic honey:**

Compounds known as prebiotics help the gastrointestinal tract's healthy bacteria to flourish and be active. Good digestion and general health depend on a well-balanced gut flora. Especially in its unprocessed form, honey has prebiotic properties. It provides food for helpful bacteria, therefore increasing their activity in the intestines and multiplication.

Honey's prebiotic qualities help good gut bacteria like Bifidobacteria and Lactobacilli flourish. Food breaks down, vitamins are synthesized, and the digestive tract is kept free from dangerous bacteria by these microorganisms. Honey supports ideal gut health by encouraging the spread of these helpful bacteria, therefore improving digestion and nutrient absorption.

# **Anti-inflammatory Effect:**

Digestive disorders such as irritable bowel syndrome (IBS), bloating, and indigestion are frequently aggravated by inflammation within the gut. Great anti-inflammatory effects of honey are well-known. Honey's phenolic components and antioxidants help to alleviate the digestive tract's inflammation.

This anti-inflammatory effect can help to reduce bloating, soothe an inflamed stomach lining, and ease symptoms of disorders including gastritis. Honey helps the digestive process by reducing inflammation and improving its efficiency and comfort level for those having digestive problems.

# **Encouragement of the Gut Lining's Restoration:**

For good digestion, a strong gut lining is absolutely vital. Studies show honey may help restore this delicate gut lining.

Honey's antioxidant properties, especially those of flavonoids, have a major influence on gut lining healing and repair. These substances strengthen the epithelial cells of the gut, therefore reducing the possibility of leaky gut and encouraging general digestive health. Those healing from digestive problems like ulcers or those with chronic inflammation especially benefit from this.

# Honey contains digestive enzymes.

Digestive enzymes abound in honey; among these are amylase, which breaks down complicated carbs into simpler sugars. Starchy foods can be broken down with help from this enzymatic activity, therefore relieving bloating, pain, and indigestion. Honey also helps control stomach acid levels, ensuring efficient breakdown and absorption of food in the stomach and intestines.

# **Encouraging gut motility:**

Gut motility relates to food movement across the digestive tract. Disruption of this process might lead to constipation among other problems. Mild laxative qualities of honey help to control bowel motions and enable smooth gut motility.

Especially fructose, the natural sugars in honey attract water into the intestines, which softens the stool and facilitates its passage through the tract. For those who have constipation, this may especially help. Regular honey intake can help to improve general digestive health and help to keep bowel motions constant.

# Reducing heartburn and acid reflux:

Studies show that honey can reduce heartburn and acid reflux, common digestive problems brought on by stomach acid rising into the oesophagus. Honey's thick and sticky character coats the oesophagus, therefore forming a protective coating against acid.

Honey's alkaline qualities can also help balance out extra stomach acid, therefore calming the esophageal lining and reducing the burning sensation linked with acid reflux. A little bit of honey before dinner or before bed could help soothe heartburn symptoms and lower acid reflux frequency.

# **Honey for Upset Stomach**

Honey has been used as a healer since centuries. Following are a few remedies of honey for an upset stomach.

- Add one teaspoon of honey to one cup of warm chamomile or linden flower tea. Drink three times daily.
- Add one teaspoon of honey to one cup of naturally carbonated mineral water. Add lemon or lime if desired. Take as needed.
- Take one tablespoon of honey upon rising in the morning and another before going to bed at night.
- Take three tablespoons of honey daily, either alone or mixed with other foods. It can also be combined with lukewarm water. Mexican folk healers suggest consuming honey as medicine two hours before breakfast and three hours after dinner.
- To facilitate healing of gastritis and stomach ulcers, take one to two teaspoons of honey three to four times per day, fifteen to twenty minutes before meals.
- Combine twenty-five fresh mint leaves with twenty-five fresh rosemary leaves. Add to a quart of hot water and allow to cool. After one hour, add three tablespoons of honey and mix. Allow to steep for twenty-four hours. Strain. Take one-half cup before bed, either cold or warm.
- Sprinkle ground cinnamon on two tablespoons of honey and take before meals. This will aid in the digestion of even the heaviest of foods.

#### PREBIOTIC EFFECTS AND GUT HEALTH

# Honey as a Potential Prebiotic

The intricate interplay between diet and gut microbiota has gained significant attention in recent years, with a growing body of research focusing on the potential of various food components as prebiotics to modulate the gut microbial ecosystem. This chapter presents a comprehensive review of the effects of honey on gut microbiota composition and functions, exploring its potential as a novel prebiotic agent. Honey, a natural sweetener with diverse bioactive compounds, has long been recognized for its therapeutic properties. However, its impact on the gut microbiome remains a subject of ongoing investigation. Through a systematic analysis of existing literature, this chapter highlights the multifaceted ways in which honey influences the gut microbial community. Various components within honey, such as oligosaccharides, phenolic compounds, and antimicrobial peptides, have been shown to exert prebiotic effects by selectively promoting the growth and activity of beneficial bacteria while inhibiting the proliferation of pathogenic species. The chapter delves into the molecular mechanisms underlying these interactions, shedding light on the intricate signaling pathways that govern the crosstalk between honey compounds and gut microbes. Furthermore, the review explores the potential health implications of honey-mediated modulation of gut microbiota, including its role in enhancing metabolic functions, immune regulation, and overall gut health. The synthesis of current knowledge provides valuable insights into the promising therapeutic applications of honey as a prebiotic agent, opening avenues for future research and the development of functional foods aimed at promoting a balanced and resilient gut microbiota. As the scientific community continues to unravel the complexities of the gut-microbiome relationship, this chapter contributes to our understanding of honey's role as a potential prebiotic and its implications for human health.

Honey contains a variety of non-digestible oligosaccharides, including fructooligosaccharides (FOS) and inulin. These compounds pass through your digestive system undigested, reaching your colon and serving as a food source for beneficial bacteria. Bacteria consume oligosaccharides and produce short-chain fatty acids (SCFAs), which play a vital role in maintaining gut health by:

- **Improving digestion:** SCFAs can help regulate bowel movements and prevent constipation.
- **Reducing inflammation:** SCFAs have anti-inflammatory properties that can help protect the gut lining.
- **Boosting immunity:** SCFAs can help strengthen your immune system by supporting the function of gut-associated lymphoid tissue (GALT).

However, it's important to choose raw honey to enjoy prebiotic benefits, as it contains more enzymes and antioxidants than processed honey. Additionally, consuming honey in moderation can help ensure your gut microbiome receives a steady supply of prebiotic fibers.

# Is honey good for gut health?

A dollop of honey definitely sweetens your day, but it's your gut that acquires its real taste. Raw honey, in particular, offers a range of benefits for your digestive system. By incorporating raw honey into your diet, you can support a healthy gut microbiome, improve digestion, and reduce the risk of digestive disorders. Here's how honey benefits your gut:

**Indigestion:** If food is not digested properly, you might experience discomfort or pain in the upper abdomen. It's often caused by excess stomach acid, and indigestion can lead to heartburn, bloating, and nausea. Raw honey, with its slightly alkaline pH, can help neutralise stomach acid, providing relief from these symptoms. This alkaline effect can create a more balanced environment in the gut, promoting healthy digestion and reducing the risk of acid reflux.

**Acid reflux:** Acid reflux, also known as heartburn, occurs when stomach acid flows back into the oesophagus. It can cause a burning sensation in the chest and throat and other uncomfortable symptoms. The alkaline properties of raw honey help ease inflammation in the oesophagus lining and reduce the frequency and severity of acid reflux episodes.

**IBD:** Inflammatory bowel disease (IBD) is a chronic condition that causes inflammation of the digestive tract. It can lead to symptoms like abdominal pain, diarrhoea, constipation, and fatigue. While more research is needed, some studies suggest that honey may have anti-inflammatory properties that can help manage symptoms of IBD.

Knowing that honey benefits your gut, you might be tempted to buy the small bottles of honey lining up on supermarket shelves. However, store-bought honey is pasteurised, meaning it's put under high heat to enhance its colour and texture and improve its shelf life. During pasteurisation, honey loses its natural components and nutrients. Hence, always opt for unprocessed raw honey to support your gut.

# Ways to consume honey for improved gut health

Though there's no definitive recommended daily intake for honey, most health experts agree that consuming a moderate amount is generally safe. A typical serving size is about 1-2 tablespoons per day. However, it's essential to listen to your body and adjust your intake accordingly.

- **Direct consumption:** The best and easiest way is to enjoy a spoonful of raw honey on its own. However, do not go overboard and limit your honey intake to 1 tablespoon daily.
- **Beverages:** Ditch the sugar and embrace the sweetness of honey to make your beverages even tastier and healthier. Add honey to tea, coffee, or lemon water to create a perfect drink.
- **Toppings:** Here's another delicious way to consume honey if you're fond of cereals, pancakes, toast, smoothies, or oatmeal. Just drizzle a few drops of honey for that extra sweet kick.
- **Baking:** Do you love baked goods? There is no need to compromise on your gut health while having cakes or cookies, either. Use honey as a sugar substitute to bake your favourite treats.

Now that you know the benefits of honey, it's time to see how effective this gut health match made in heaven truly is. By incorporating honey into your diet, you're not just treating yourself to a delicious treat but also nourishing your gut microbiome and improving your digestive health. Explore different ways of adding honey and feel the difference!

#### ANTIVIRAL ACTIONS OF HONEY

# Why the Antiviral Benefits of Honey?

Globally, the Covid-19 pandemic is reminding us of just how seriously viruses threaten human health, social cohesion, and economies. Against this backdrop, there is accumulating evidence that honeys, including some honeys, display antiviral activity and have related therapeutic benefits.

Where we are cautious about claiming anything about the benefits of honey unless it has been the subject of robust published research. So we have reviewed research from across the world regarding the antiviral benefits of honey, and want to share with you a summary of what we have found.

# The Study of the Antiviral Benefits of Honey

Viruses are very small particles of genetic material (either DNA or RNA) that are surrounded by a protein coat. They cannot reproduce on their own and replicate inside the living cells of infected organisms. Viruses infect a host by introducing their genetic material into the cells, hijacking the cell's internal machinery to make more virus particles, and eventually killing the cells.

There are many kinds of viruses that infect humans: some cause serious illness, others do not, and some can even be beneficial. Examples of common disease-causing viruses are the common cold, influenza, chickenpox, human immunodeficiency virus (HIV), and cold sores (Herpes simplex).

Studies of antiviral activity use a range of approaches that give us differing levels of confidence that the results can be applied in human health. Most commonly, the studies of the antiviral benefits of honey have been done in vitro. These studies are done in a petrie dish or test tube in the laboratory, and not in a living organism.

For example, considered below, demonstrated in a controlled environment that certain honeys have an inhibitory effect on the replication of the human influenza virus. This virus was grown in a mammalian cell line maintained in the laboratory.

# **Conclusion on the Antiviral Benefits of Honey**

Natural products potentially offer effective, novel, antiviral treatments. The scientific research we found in this review suggests that the role of honey as an anti-viral treatment is extremely encouraging, not only because of its anti-viral benefits but also because of its therapeutic impact on related conditions such as bacterial infection, inflammation and oxidative stress.

For us as a honey producer who cares about honey, these findings are truly exciting, but we are evidence-driven in the claims we are prepared to make about the benefits of honey.

So whilst the research clearly shows that honey exhibits antiviral benefits, we point out that:

- Very few of the wide range of honeys available have been tested for antiviral activity.
- The few honeys that have been tested have only been tested against a few viruses.
- Few studies have carefully explored the mechanisms behind the antiviral benefits observed in honey.
- Very few clinical studies of the antiviral benefits of honey have been completed.

It is clear to us that more research is needed regarding the antiviral benefits of honey, but that the positive results in the research we considered in this article signals it is definitely worthwhile for that research to be undertaken.

We also found in this review that research on the antibacterial activity of honey is relatively advanced when compared with research on antiviral benefits of honey. So we urge the scientific community across the world to continue to build the body of knowledge about the antiviral effects of honey, as an effective natural treatment against viral scourges that undermine human health.

#### POTENTIAL ANTI-CANCER BENEFITS

# Honey: A natural cancer vaccine

For ages, honey has been used to address problems of gastrointestinal (GI) tract, liver, and cardiovascular system.

Today, honey is found to exhibit significant bactericidal activity against bacteria like Escherichia coli, Salmonella, Shigella, and Helicobacter pylori. Other than this, honey tends to counteract reactive oxygen species induced oxidation of low-density lipoproteins and enhances cardiovascular protection. Other than these honey also proven to be beneficial for obesity and immunity.

However, there is one more problem, where the benefits of honey are immense. This is cancer or tumour. Due to the composition of honey, it is very beneficial against cancerous cells.

Let's explore what are these benefits and to what extent honey is essential for cancer patients.

# Mechanism of honey in cancer prevention

# **Induces apoptosis**

Apoptosis is a process involved in programmed cell death. Honey by depolarizing the mitochondrial membrane initiates the apoptosis of various cancer cell lines. Along with this, honey also helps in down regulating anti-apoptotic protein. All together significantly helps to control cancer.

# Cell cycle arrest

Cell cycle (G1, G2, M, and S phases) is the major essential thing for the growth of a cell. The flavonoids and phenolics both act upon the G1/G0 stage and inhibits the cell cycles of various cancer cell lines, for instance, colon, glioma, and lung cancer.

# **Immunomodulatory effect**

This effect of honey plays a major role in cancer prevention. The reason behind the substantial immunomodulatory effect is the production of short-chain fatty acids (SCFAs), which produced upon the digestion of honey.

# **Activates mitochondrial pathway**

Mitochondrial pathway activation is an essential mechanism for cell death. The stimulation of mitochondrial outer membrane permeabilization (MOMP) outflows specific proteins in the cytosol, which activates mediators which show potent anticancer properties.

# **Regulates oxidative stress**

It is said that oxidative stress plays a significant role in the propagation of cancer cell lines like breast, lung, colorectal and gastric cancers. Being a significant antioxidant, honey mitigates the reactive oxygen species that cause oxidative stress. In this way, honey can influence the proliferation and progression of tumours.

#### **Conclusion**

Evidence isgrowingthathoneymayhave thepotential to be an anti-cancer agent through several mechanisms. Though the full mechanism is yet to be fully understood, studies have shown that honey has an anti-cancer effect through its interference with multiple cell-signaling pathways, such as inducing apoptosis, antiproliferative, anti-inflammatory, and antimutagenic pathways. Honey modulates the body immune system. There are still many unanswered questions; why is sugar carcinogenic, while honey which is basically sugar has anticarcinogenic properties. Honey of different floral sources may give different effects. More research is needed to improve our understanding of the positive effect of honey and cancer. What is seen in cell cultures or animal experimentations may not apply to humans. Prospective randomized controlled clinical trials are needed to validate the authenticity of honey either alone or as adjuvant therapy.

#### HONEY'S ROLE IN BLOOD SUGAR REGULATION

# The role of honey in the treatment of type 2 diabetes mellitus: a review of literature

The use of honey in the control of hyperglycemia in patients with type 2 diabetes mellitus is a current option being explored globally. Honey bees, which are named in Latin as Apis, use the collected nectar from plants to produce honey after regurgitation and digestion of nectar. Carbohydrate constitutes about 80% of the components of honey. It includes monosaccharides [fructose (37.5%) and glucose (30.6%), disaccharides (sucrose (1.6%) and maltose (2.7%)] and oligosaccharides. Natural honey also contains water (17.2%), proteins, vitamins, minerals, enzymes, acids such as flavonoids, phenolic acids and other components. Honey is rich in antioxidant content and these antioxidant compounds function as endogenous cellular antioxidant defences against free radicals in diabetes mellitus. Antioxidants have also been shown to exert a beneficial effect on blood glucose. Fructose and other bioactive constituents of honey have also been linked with amelioration of hyperglycemia. Besides the beneficial effects of honey on blood glucose, honey is widely used in the management of diabetic foot ulcers, an important complication of diabetes mellitus. The wound-healing benefits of honey are attributed to its antioxidant constituents and broad-spectrum antimicrobial activity. Though additional studies are needed, the use of honey in the management of diabetes mellitus holds much promise.

# **Honey and Diabetes**

If you have type 2 diabetes or are at high risk for it, you may have heard that honey is better for you than other sweeteners. While honey may have some health benefits, it's still a source of simple sugars and carbohydrates. And if you have diabetes, you need to count your carbohydrates throughout the day, especially if you're using medications such as insulin.

# **Can People With Diabetes Eat Honey?**

In general, it's OK to consume honey when you have diabetes. While honey does have a lower GI than white sugar, it still contains carbs such as fructose and glucose. These carbs are easier for you to digest and have less impact on your blood sugar than white sugar.

So, if you use insulin to manage your type 2 diabetes, it's very important to track your sugar intake because all types, including honey, will raise your blood glucose. So, talk to your diabetes educator, doctor, or dietitian to figure out how much is safe for you.

# **Honey Nutritional Value**

Honey is a sweetener made by honeybees and some bumblebees when they gather nectar from flowers. The bees store the nectar in the hive, where it breaks down into simple sugars and turns into honey.

Honey is considered an "added sugar" on Nutritional Facts labels by the FDA because it's not naturally part of foods or drinks. Instead, it's added during processing to sweeten them.

Honey is also a source of carbohydrates, which are mainly in the form of simple sugars — glucose and fructose.

- One tablespoon of honey has:
- •
- 61 calories
- 17 grams of sugar
- 17 grams of carbohydrates
- 0.06 grams of protein
- 0.04 grams of fiber

It also contains vitamins and minerals, such as potassium, calcium, zinc, and vitamin C, as well as antioxidants. However, these are not present in significant amounts, so don't look to honey as a major source of these nutrients.

# Is Honey Good for Diabetes?

Experts don't all agree on whether honey is a good choice for people with diabetes. Research shows that honey has anti-inflammatory and antioxidant qualities. That may be important for people with diabetes, who often have higher levels of inflammation in their bodies. But many foods deliver antioxidants without raising your blood sugar. So, you definitely don't need honey to get those nutrients.

Much of the research on diabetes and honey has used lab animals, but some studies have been done on people too.

A 2022 meta-analysis of 18 small studies found that some types of honey slightly lowered participants' fasting blood sugar. However, a 2021 systemic review of clinical trials found that getting too much honey actually can increase the glucose levels of people with type 2 diabetes.

# Honey vs. Sugar

Honey is different from white (or table) sugar as it contains vitamins and minerals, whereas sugar lacks these. Honey also has a lower glycemic index (GI) than table sugar. The GI measures how quickly a carbohydrate raises your blood

sugar levels. Honey has a GI score of 50, while sugar has a GI value of 80. That means honey (like all carbohydrates) raises blood sugar quickly, but not quite as fast as white sugar.

There's no likely benefit to swapping sugar for honey if you have diabetes since both affect your blood sugar in similar ways. If you do choose to eat honey, make sure you know how much you're getting. Foods containing honey may have more honey and carbohydrates than you realize. That can negatively affect your blood sugar and your ability to take the right amount of insulin.

# **Takeaways**

Honey is a natural sweetener that has a lower glycemic index than other sweeteners, such as white sugar. But it can still spike your blood glucose if you have diabetes, so talk to your doctor before you decide to add honey to your diet. For people with diabetes, raw honey is a better option than filtered honey, as it doesn't have added sugars.

## **COGNITIVE FUNCTION & BRAIN HEALTH**

# 3 Ways Raw Honey can help Memory and Cognitive Function

# **Raw Honey Improves Gut Health**

Along with high amounts of anti-oxidants a study in the Journal of the American College of Nutrition found raw honey contains oligosaccharides (a prebiotic that feeds gut flora) along with small amounts of proteins, enzymes, amino acids, minerals, trace elements, vitamins, aroma compounds and polyphenols. These nutrients act as a main energy source and fuel for the body including the brain. Studies are showing antibiotics can reduce levels of amyloid-beta proteins that are said to be linked to Alzheimer's disease (they clump into plaques that lead to nerve cell death) as raw honey is also antibacterial; this could be an alternative.

Raw honey's anti-inflammatory qualities are known to aid digestion issues including irritable bowel syndrome (IBS). Keeping the gut healthy and balanced is really important in overall health and well-being. The gut microbiome is affected by what we eat and is connected to the brain. The gut is often referred to as the "second brain" and therefore food and the efficiency of the gut can affect our mood, cognitive function and memory.

Another factor when considering your daily nutrition is that raw honey helps stabilize blood sugar and can reduce the risk of insulin resistance and diabetes which are linked to Alzheimer Disease and dementia. This suggests raw honey might help reduce the affects of these diseases and so reduce the negative impact on cognitive function and memory.

## **Raw Honey Improves Sleep Health**

There is a reason the body needs a good night's sleep; it's the time for the body to rest, heal and rejuvenate so you can function optimally the next day. It seems a spoonful of raw honey before you go to bed can help you get your eight hours of shut eye. "Honey is the 'Gold Standard' brain fuel. It prevents or eliminates metabolic stress which in turn leads to improved functional capacity for learning and memory. Honey also promotes recovery sleep and fuels the brain during the night. In fact, honey can improve your sleep quality and duration, reduce the risk for all the metabolic conditions associated with sleep deprivation or interrupted sleep, and increase REM sleep." Note: this only applies to raw honey which still contains the nutritional and health boosting goodness straight from the hive.

Raw honey before bedtime feeds the brain the necessary liver glycogen and prevents what is called chronic brain starvation, chronic sleep loss and chronic metabolic stress. All these can trigger diseases like Alzheimer's. Studies on

honeys showed they can stimulate antiacetylcholinesterase activity that has been linked to the prevention of neurodegenerative diseases.

# **Raw Honey Improves Brain Health**

Another benefit of raw honey in boosting your brain function, that may come as a surprise, is that it aids the body's absorption of calcium. Brain cells need calcium for the electrical signals to work. Researchers recently looked into the significance of calcium for the honey bee and found that it was crucial for long term memory and learning, even in insects. The study observed that when honey bees were deprived of calcium, they weren't able to remember their food source. Within three days of receiving calcium again, the bees were able to re-learn and remember their food source. Raw honey is also a natural source of magnesium, potassium, and B vitamins that provide vital energy and brain focus.

# The Science Behind Honey and Brain Health

Research into the effects of honey on brain health is still in its early stages, but several studies point to promising benefits. Let's explore the potential cognitive advantages of incorporating honey into our diets.

# **Cognitive Benefits of Honey**

# 1. Memory Enhancement

Several studies suggest that honey may help improve memory function. The antioxidants found in honey are believed to play a crucial role in protecting brain cells from oxidative damage, which can impair memory and cognitive function.

For instance, research has shown that honey can enhance memory performance in both animal models and human studies. The cognitive benefits are often attributed to the increased levels of brain-derived neurotrophic factor (BDNF), a protein that supports neuron growth and survival.

# 2. Neuroprotective Properties

Honey's antioxidant properties extend to its neuroprotective capabilities. Oxidative stress is a significant contributor to neurodegenerative diseases, such as Alzheimer's and Parkinson's. By reducing oxidative damage in the brain, honey may help protect against cognitive decline.

Studies have indicated that honey consumption can mitigate the effects of neurotoxins and improve overall brain health. The flavonoids present in honey may also have anti-inflammatory properties, further contributing to its neuroprotective effects.

## 3. Stress Reduction

Stress plays a significant role in cognitive function and overall brain health. High levels of stress can lead to changes in brain structure and function, negatively impacting memory and learning. Honey may help reduce stress levels, thanks to its ability to lower cortisol, the body's primary stress hormone.

By promoting relaxation and reducing the impact of stress on the brain, honey can potentially create an environment conducive to better cognitive.

# Top 5 honeys for brain and mental health

Raw honey is one of the few easily accessible foods that contains necessary vitamins and minerals to support the body and the mind. In fact, one teaspoon of honey contains around 25% of your recommended daily allowance of Vitamins B, C and D. Because raw honey has never been heated, processed, pasteurised or diluted, its healthy properties are readily available for our body to absorb. These vitamins and minerals can protect us against molecules that cause damage, illness and aging to our cells.

**B Vitamins:** Raw honey has a high concentration of B complex vitamins: thiamine (B1), niacin (B3) biotin (B7) and folic acid (B9) to name a few. Thiamine's purpose is to help with the production of neurotransmitters. B12 is found in both honey and bee pollen and is responsible for giving you energy, improving your focus, and, in turn making it easier to learn. In general, B vitamins are crucial for the brain and nervous system: they regulate the energy in the brain and are great memory and mood enhancers, helping to prevent symptoms of depression and anxiety, brain fog and memory loss.

**Omega 3** encourages blood flow throughout the brain and is essential for its function and continued growth. Higher blood flow in certain areas may directly lead to better performance in certain cognitive tasks. These fatty acids can improve memory and ease inflammation in the brain, preventing the chances of dementia and other neurological issues. Along with Vitamin B6, Omega 3 can also promote transmission of chemicals in the brain, such as serotonin and dopamine, which are related to mental health issues and your mood.

**Calcium:** This mineral is the most important for healthy brain function. Its main role is to relay nerve cell messages. It controls synaptic activity (neuron communication) and memory formation. The polyphenols found in raw honey have been proven to help the body absorb calcium.

**Vitamin D:** Vitamin D is commonly associated with good moods and overall health. Without it, the body would struggle to absorb other vital vitamins and minerals that it needs. It regulates many tasks relevant to the brain's function

(attention, memory, mood) and balances the calcium levels. Our Whipped Chocolate Honey contains lots of vitamin D and magnesium from the raw cacao.

**Magnesium** is a mineral come to light a lot more in recent years. It relays signals between the brain and the body and is the main gateway for receptors that are found on your nerve cells. These receptors are responsible for memory and brain development. Magnesium prevents brain fog and can encourage concentration. Low levels of magnesium in your body can contribute to stress, mental health issues, hormone imbalance, low energy and inflammation, which can often present in the form of a headache or migraine. If you are suffering any of these symptoms, we recommend adding more magnesium to your diet in the form of healthy greens, supplements or by taking a daily spoonful of our Yemeni Wildflowers honey.

**Zinc** contributes to the functionality of the immune system and its antioxidants. It is another element that is important to the nervous system and helps with cell reproduction.

**Potassium** is another key mineral. It carries oxygen to the brain and helps cells communicate by sending electrical signals to each other when the nerves are stimulated.

**Curcumin:** According to studies, it was found that people who took curcumin – found in turmeric – did better in memory tests and had less "abnormal" proteins in their brains. Our Turmeric-Infused Raw Honey also contains black pepper, which makes the body's cells more susceptible to soak up the benefits of turmeric.

## **TOPICAL & INTERNAL PAIN RELIEF**

# Introduction

One of the non-drug methods to reduce pain is honey, with various methods that have been reported in several studies. Honey has been used since ancient times to treat several ailments. Hippocrates used honey since 400 BC for healing wounds, even the ancient Egyptians used honey to treat corneal and conjunctival inflammation and burns from 5000 years ago. Honey has been shown to possess antibacterial and anti-inflammatory properties. Antioxidant, anti-inflammatory, and antibacterial properties, as well as accelerated wound recovery and pain relief, are the benefits reported for honey as a natural therapeutic method. In modern medicine, honey has been used successfully to treat burns, graft donor sites, post-operative wound infections, skin ulcers. Moreover, honey has also been reported to benefit wound care of patients undergoing chemotherapy, those with physiological wound disorders, and prolonged injury. In previous studies, there is no report for honey side effects in wound healing. Allergy to honey is rare, but an allergic reaction to honey's proteins and allergens is possible.

Mechanical or thermal injuries may occur in the tonsillar fossa during tonsillectomy, and this location remains an open wound after surgery. Therefore, patients complain about throat pain, particularly during swallowing. When used regularly after tonsillectomy, honey may have benefits on tissue repair, thereby reducing post-operative pains. The application of honey may reduce inflammation of infected wounds and facilitate the healing time duration.

## Honey—A Natural Remedy for Pain Relief

Honey is renowned for its multiple health benefits namely the antiinflammation, antibacterial, antioxidant, and potentially antimutagenic. The antinociceptive effect of honey however, is not fully investigated. The clinical usage of the analgaesic drugs is associated with multiple detrimental complications. Honey on the other hand, provides a viable option as an adjunct pain therapy. Numerous phytochemicals and components in honey contributes, to its effects which include antinociception. Protein, amino acid, flavanoids, phenolics, organic acid, pigment, water, and high sugar content in honey possess their own characteristic medicinal values and complex interaction exist between these components that are responsible for their antibacterial, antiinflammation, and immunomodulation properties. Honey may alter the antiinflammatory and immunostimulatory mediators, hence directly or indirectly lead to inhibition of pain. These can be at the level of central and peripheral nervous system or at the autonomic receptor sites. The cyclo-oxygenase pathway may also be involved.

# **Highlights**

- Honey has effectiveness, accelerates and facilitates wound healing.
- Gargling with honey led to reduced pain following tonsillectomy.
- Honey was found to lower prostaglandin levels and elevate nitric oxide.
- Honey can be used as an adjunctive regimen after surgery for better pain control.
- Honey is easy to use, safe to consume orally and available at low cost locally.

## **Methods**

This study is a double-blind and randomized controlled trial design. Twenty-four adult male patients underwent tonsillectomy surgery and were randomized assigned into three groups consisting of the honey group, placebo group, and control group. All subjects were given standard analgesia and antibiotics, also honey for the honey group and placebo for the placebo group, and only standard post-operative regimens for the control group. This study used silk-cotton tree or kapok tree honey (Ceiba pentandra). Honey was used by gargling every six hours for ten days. Likewise, the same method was applied in the placebo group. Pain scale was assessed for ten days using the Visual Analogue Scale questionnaire, and the frequency of analgesic drugs was recorded on days 1, 2, 4, 7, and 10.

## **Conclusions**

Administration of Kapok tree honey (C. pentandra) after tonsillectomy might reduce post-operative pain and reduce the need for analgesia. Therefore, honey can be considered a complementary medicine and can be administered routinely as adjunctive therapy for post-operative patients.

#### **HYDRATION & ELECTROLYTE BALANCE**

Honey is well-regarded for its ability to keep your skin moisturized. It's classified as an emollient, the official term for an ingredient that moisturizes and softens the skin. It's also a humectant, a substance that attracts and holds onto water to help keep your skin hydrated.

While several compounds in honey are thought to contribute to hydration, research suggests that the sugars in honey form a protective layer on your skin, helping prevent water loss.

Well-hydrated skin appears smoother, plumper, and has better elasticity. Hydration also promotes a healthy skin barrier — the outermost layer of your skin that shields you from environmental pollutants and toxins. When your skin is dehydrated, the skin barrier gets damaged and doesn't function as well. By keeping your skin barrier hydrated, honey helps it perform its protective role.

# Honey for hydration:

Adding Honey to your water is beneficial for so many reasons.

- It can help control acid reflux It produces an antioxidant called glutathione, which fights free radicals, thus reducing or preventing cell damage in the digestive tract. Honey can also stimulate the regrowth of tissues on the sphincter and reduces the chances of acid reflux.
- It may help curb cravings for sweets, perfect if you are trying to lose weight or are watching your sugar intake.
- It can be helpful during allergy season as Manuka Honey has strong antimicrobial activity that is shown to be effective against bacteria, Staphylococcus aureus (S. aureus), which is associated with atopic diseases, including allergic rhinitis.
- It can help with constipation or IBS symptoms Manuka Honey is a natural probiotic and is rich in friendly bacteria which may help with constipation, bloating and IBS symptoms.
- When playing sports or going to the gym, Adding honey to your water bottle gives you an instant energy boost. During exercising fructose helps maintain it as it is absorbed slower. Great post workout revitalizer. One tablespoon of honey in hot water or green tea after a hard workout and see the difference immediately as it revitalizes you instantly.

## **Abstract**

Honey has been used as food and medicine for thousands of years. The purpose of this study was to determine the effect of honey in restoring the levels of electrolytes and blood glucose after performing physical exercises. The effect of honey consumption on electrolyte and blood glucose levels was examined on 12

healthy male subjects, which were divided into 4 groups with three members in each group. Group I was treated as control and provided only 250 ml of mineral water after exercise, while group II was provided 250 ml commercial isotonic beverage, group III provided honey solution 1 (15 ml honey/250 ml water), and group IV provided honey solution 2 (45 ml honey/250 ml water). The physical exercise performed by the subjects is running on a treadmill at a speed of 5.6 km/h for 40 minutes. Measurements of electrolyte and blood glucose levels were performed 24 hrs before as initial baseline, and these were also measured after the physical exercise as well as after the treatment. Results of the study revealed that honey played a significant role in the restore electrolyte and blood glucose levels in people who have performed physical activities such as exercising and the effect of honey is similar to the commercial isotonic beverage. However, no significant difference (p-value > 0.05) was reported between the honey solution 1 and 2 and other treatment groups in elevating sodium and chloride level.

## **HEART HEALTH & CHOLESTEROL MANAGEMENT**

# Is Honey Heart Healthy?

A 2020 study published in the International Journal of Environmental Research and Public Health indicates that honey may offer several heart healthy benefits, such as lowering blood pressure, improving blood fat levels, regulating your heartbeat and preventing the death of healthy cells.

Honey contains several antioxidants, substances that can help fight against unstable molecules in the body (or free radicals). These antioxidants may also help reduce inflammation that can lead to problems such as heart disease and high blood pressure.

Additionally, raw honey contains propolis, a resin bees produce from sap-making plants. Research published in a 2019 issue of Nutrients shows that propolis may improve cholesterol and triglyceride levels. Cholesterol and triglycerides are fats that can increase the risk of heart disease and other serious health conditions.

Honey has other health benefits, too. Studies suggest that certain types of honey, like eucalyptus, can act as a cough suppressant. Other honey varieties can help relieve gastrointestinal issues, ease depression and anxiety, and promote the healing of topical wounds. So, if it comes down to a spoonful of sugar or a dip of honey, honey is likely the healthier choice.

# Honey May improve heart health

Honey may also help prevent heart disease. According to one review, honey may help lower blood pressure, improve blood fat levels, regulate your heartbeat, and prevent the death of healthy cells — all factors that can improve your heart function and health.

One observational study, including over 4,500 people over 40 associated a moderate honey intake with a lower risk of high blood pressure among women. A rodent study also showed that honey helped protect the heart from oxidative stress.

Additionally, raw honey typically contains propolis, a resin that bees produce from sap-producing trees and similar plants. Propolis may improve cholesterol and triglyceride levels.

All told, there's no long-term human study available on honey and heart health. More research is needed to understand honey's effects on heart health better.

# Effect of honey on serum cholesterol and lipid values

Small studies have suggested that honey benefits patients with high cholesterol concentrations. The present study aimed to confirm this finding in a larger group of subjects. Sixty volunteers with high cholesterol, stratified according to gender and hydroxymethylglutaryl-coenzyme A reductase inhibitor (statin) treatment (yes/no), were randomized to receive 75 g of honey solution or a honey-comparable sugar solution once daily over a period of 14 days. Baseline measurements, including body mass index (BMI) and lipid profile, were obtained, and subjects also completed dietary questionnaires and the Inventory for the Assessment of Negative Bodily Affect-Trait form (INKA-h) questionnaire. Measurements were repeated 2 weeks later. BMI and high-density lipoprotein (HDL) cholesterol values were significantly correlated (r = -0.487; P < .001) as were BMI and a lower ratio of low-density lipoprotein (LDL) cholesterol to HDL cholesterol (r = 0.420; P < .001), meaning that subjects with a high BMI had a lower HDL cholesterol value. INKA-h scores and LDL cholesterol values were also significantly correlated (r = 0.273, P = .042). Neither solution influenced significantly cholesterol or triglyceride values in the total group; in women, however, the LDL cholesterol value increased in the sugar solution subgroup but not in the women taking honey. Although ingesting honey did not reduce LDL cholesterol values in general, women may benefit from substituting honey for sugar in their diet. Reducing the BMI lowers the LDL cholesterol value, and psychological interventions also seem important and merit further investigation.

# Raw Honey and Cholesterol Management:

Numerous studies have cast a spotlight on raw honey's potential to be a natural ally in the quest for cholesterol management.

The golden elixir, rich in flavonoids and niacin-like substances, is believed to hold the key to a heart-healthy balance. Flavonoids, known for their antioxidant properties, may contribute to preventing the oxidation of LDL ("bad") cholesterol, a crucial factor in reducing the risk of coronary heart disease. Meanwhile, niacin-like substances present in raw honey are thought to be modifiers of lipids, working their magic to influence cholesterol levels effectively.

# How does honey affect heart health?

Honey contains antioxidants that support heart health by reducing inflammation, improving cholesterol balance, and promoting better blood circulation.

# Is raw honey better than sugar for cholesterol management?

Yes, raw honey is a healthier alternative to refined sugar as it has a lower glycemic index and provides nutrients that support heart health.

# How should I consume honey to improve cholesterol levels?

Consuming a spoonful of raw honey daily, mixing it with warm water, or adding it to healthy meals can help regulate cholesterol levels.

# Can honey completely replace cholesterol-lowering medications?

While honey can support heart health, it should not replace prescribed medications. Always consult a doctor for proper cholesterol management.

## **Conclusion:**

The journey towards heart health is a continuous journey, hence consider opting for truly raw honey – pure and unadulterated. With no added sugars or preservatives, truly raw honey stands out as a superior choice for cholesterol management. We are only about truly raw and cold processed honey. Consult a registered dietitian to know more about your dietary preferences, and let raw honey be your natural companion on the road to a healthier heart. Sweeten wisely, savor the goodness, and let your heart thank you for it.

**ORAL HEALTH: PLAQUE & GUM CARE** 

Honey in oral health and care: A mini review

## **Abstract**

**Background:** Honey is a natural product made from the nectar of flowers by honey bees and has over 200 compounds in it, including sugars, water, organic acids, minerals and polyphenols - the exact structure and composition of honey often determined by which plant source(s) the honey bee took the nectar from. Honey has been used in diets and medicines for thousands of years; however, this review, for the first time, aims to look at its place in modern medicine concerning oral health.

**Highlight:** The present review for the first time attempted to address the protective effect of honey in oral care.

**Conclusion:** For the first time this review addresses the usefulness of honey against Streptococcus mutans infections, dental plaque and caries, gingivitis and halitosis. Honey was also useful in preventing side effects associated with treatment of cancers of the head and neck, namely, radiation induced mucositis, xerostomia and poor wound healing. This is well supported by evidence in literature and was examined in this review.

**Keywords:** GingivitisOral cancer; Honey; Oral health; Oral malodor.

# **Antimicrobial Effect of Honey on Plaque Microflora**

## **Introduction:**

Honey has been used as a medicine throughout the ages. Large volumes of literature reported its effectiveness as a potent anti-bacterial and anti-inflammatory agent. Ibis study is to investigate anti-microbial properties of honey against some bacterial strains present in dental plaque.

## **Materials & Method:**

The short term antibacterial effect of honey on plaque microorganism of oral cavity was tested in 10 volunteers. Bacterial colony counts before and after honey application was observed. Magnitude of difference in microbial colony was expressed in unit per ml to identify the role of honey on plaque micro-flora.

## **Results:**

After application of Honey on all the volunteers, it was observed that the bacterial colony counts of three species namely: Streptococcus mutans, Peptostreptococcus sp. and Pseudomonas aeruginosa were reduced in significant

amount, whereas the colony counts of Staphylococcus aureus were reduced but not significantly.

## **Conclusion:**

The above result is encouraging. To consider honey as a potent antimicrobial agent further studies incorporating more bacterial species are required. Study findings can result invaluable public health intervention.

# **Honey's Antibacterial Powers**

## **How Honey Fights Bacteria in Your Mouth**

Honey is renowned for its natural antibacterial properties, which can be highly beneficial for oral health. It contains hydrogen peroxide, a mild antiseptic that helps to kill harmful bacteria in the mouth. This makes honey an effective natural alternative to commercial antibacterial agents.

# • Comparison with Traditional Antibacterial Products

While traditional antibacterial products often contain alcohol and other chemicals, honey provides a gentler approach. Its antibacterial effects are not only effective but also safer for your oral tissues, making it a valuable addition to your dental care routine. If you're searching for a "dentist near me" or a "local dentist," consider discussing natural remedies like honey as part of your overall care strategy.

## **Healing Oral Wounds with Honey**

# • The Healing Properties of Honey

Honey's ability to aid in wound healing is another impressive benefit. Its natural anti-inflammatory and healing properties can help soothe and repair minor oral wounds and sores. Whether you've experienced a cut or a sore in your mouth, applying honey can accelerate the healing process and reduce discomfort.

# Using Honey for Minor Oral Injuries

For small cuts or irritations, a small amount of honey applied directly can provide relief. This home remedy is not a substitute for professional dental care but can be a soothing adjunct. For more severe issues, visiting a "cosmetic dentist" or a "pediatric dentist" may be necessary.

## Fresh Breath with Honey

# Honey's Role in Neutralizing Odors

Honey can also contribute to fresher breath. It helps neutralize odors caused by bacteria and other factors, making your breath more pleasant. This is

particularly useful if you're looking for a natural way to complement your breath-freshening routine.

# • Incorporating Honey into Your Oral Care Routine

To use honey for fresh breath, you can try swishing a teaspoon of honey with warm water. This simple remedy can be a refreshing addition to your daily oral care. However, it's still essential to maintain regular brushing and flossing, and to visit your dental office regularly for comprehensive care.

# **Promoting Gum Health**

# • Honey's Role in Gum Care

Honey's properties extend to promoting healthy gums. Its antibacterial nature can help prevent gum disease and inflammation. Regular use of honey, in moderation, may help maintain gum health and reduce the risk of conditions like gingivitis.

## Preventing Gum Disease with Honey

To support gum health, you might consider using honey as part of a balanced oral care routine. However, remember that it should not replace professional treatments or regular dental visits. If you're dealing with gum issues, consult a "cosmetic dentist" for personalized advice and treatment options.

# Honey as a Tooth-Friendly Sweetener

Reducing Sugar Intake

One of the best things about honey is that it serves as a natural sweetener. Replacing refined sugars with honey in your diet can help reduce your overall sugar intake, which is beneficial for dental health. Excessive sugar consumption is linked to tooth decay and other dental problems, so switching to honey can be a healthier choice.

# • Impact on Overall Dental Health

By using honey instead of sugar, you can mitigate some of the negative effects on your teeth. Honey's natural sugars are less likely to contribute to tooth decay compared to refined sugars. Nevertheless, moderation is key, and it's important to balance your diet and oral hygiene practices.

# **Summary of Honey's Dental Benefits**

Incorporating honey into your dental care routine offers several benefits, from its antibacterial properties to its role in supporting gum health and freshening breath. While honey is a valuable addition to oral care, it should complement—not replace—regular brushing, flossing, and professional dental

visits. Integrating honey into your routine can be a sweet way to enhance your dental health.

# Is honey bad for gum disease?

Honey can actually be used to treat gum disease. Its powerful antibacterial and antiseptic properties can help treat gingivitis as well as bleeding and receding gums. Up to 80% of adults will have periodontal disease at least once in their lives. The bacteria inhabiting an oral cavity cause inflammation, so the best way to prevent gingivitis is to kick out those bacteria.

When you mix honey with water, an enzyme in honey called glucose oxidase produces hydrogen peroxide. The production of hydrogen peroxide is the primary reason for its antimicrobial activity. You can even place honey directly on the site of inflammation or infection in the mouth. Honey's antibacterial properties flush out harmful bacteria.

By fighting the bacteria, honey reduces the amount of acid your mouth produces. Without that acid, bacteria can no longer produce dextran, which is essentially the "glue" that helps bacteria attach to the tooth surface.

# Does honey cause plaque on your teeth?

No, honey does not cause plaque on your teeth. In fact, honey can help reduce plaque buildup by fighting the bacteria that produce acid in the mouth.

## SKIN CARE AND DERMATOLOGICAL USES

# Honey in dermatology and skin care

Honey is a bee-derived, supersaturated solution composed mainly of fructose and glucose, and containing proteins and amino acids, vitamins, enzymes, minerals, and other minor components. Historical records of honey skin uses date back to the earliest civilizations, showing that honey has been frequently used as a binder or vehicle, but also for its therapeutic virtues. Antimicrobial properties are pivotal in dermatological applications, owing to enzymatic H2O2 release or the presence of active components, like methylglyoxal in manuka, while medical-grade honey is also available. Honey is particularly suitable as a dressing for wounds and burns and has also been included in treatments against pityriasis, tinea, seborrhea, dandruff, diaper dermatitis, psoriasis, hemorrhoids, and anal fissure. In cosmetic formulations, it exerts emollient, humectant, soothing, and hair conditioning effects, keeps the skin juvenile and retards wrinkle formation, regulates pH and prevents pathogen infections. Honey-based cosmetic products include lip ointments, cleansing milks, hydrating creams, after sun, tonic lotions, shampoos, and conditioners. The used amounts range between 1 and 10%, but concentrations up to 70% can be reached by mixing with oils, gel, and emulsifiers, or polymer entrapment. Intermediate-moisture, dried, and chemically modified honeys are also used. Mechanisms of action on skin cells are deeply conditioned by the botanical sources and include antioxidant activity, the induction of cytokines and matrix metalloproteinase expression, as well as epithelial-mesenchymal transition in wounded epidermis. Future achievements, throwing light on honey chemistry and pharmacological traits, will open the way to new therapeutic approaches and add considerable market value to the product.

# he Therapeutic Properties of Honey for Skin

Let us understand what makes honey so suitable for your skin.

# **Anti-bacterial & Anti-microbial Effects**

Honey is a natural combatant against various skin infections. It can restrict the growth of harmful bacteria and thus is considered beneficial for conditions like acne or other minor skin irritations.

# **Anti-Inflammatory Properties**

Not only does honey help in calming skin irritation, but it can also provide relief in inflammatory skin issues such as eczema. It helps soothe symptoms like redness, swelling, and itching in various inflammatory skin conditions.

# **Humectant & Moisturising Qualities**

Honey attracts and retains skin's moisture. This inherent humectant property makes it an excellent moisturiser, keeping the skin hydrated and promoting supple and shiny skin. It is very beneficial for people with dry skin.

# The Uses and Benefits of Honey

Before knowing about how to use honey for skin benefits, let us understand how manuka honey benefits our skin:

- **Acne and Blemishes:** Honey's antibacterial and anti-inflammatory properties make it a valuable ally in fighting acne. It can unclog pores, reduce inflammation, and inhibit bacterial growth. Regular application may also diminish blemishes and promote clearer and healthier skin.
- **Dry and Sensitive Skin:** If you have dry or sensitive skin, honey's humectant qualities can have a great impact. It moisturises the skin and soothes sensitive areas.
- Wound Healing and Scar Reduction: Honey has natural wound-healing capabilities. Its antimicrobial action aids in preventing infections and humectant and anti-inflammatory properties support tissue regeneration. If you apply honey to wounds or scars, it can help in faster healing and reduce the appearance of scars over time.

# **Evidence-backed honey benefits for skin**

# Wound healing

One of the most studied honey benefits for your skin is its ability to help with wound healing. In fact, honey is the oldest known wound-healing agent. Because of its medicinal properties, people have been using honey on their skin since ancient times.

Honey helps wounds heal by:

- **Triggering cytokine release:** Cytokines are small proteins released by white blood cells. They tell your immune system to start repairing tissue and build new skin around your wound.
- **Forming a protective barrier:** This barrier keeps your skin moist, which can help speed up healing.
- **Reducing inflammation and pain:** Honey's anti-inflammatory properties can ease discomfort.
- Reducing the risk of wound infections: Its antibacterial, antifungal, and antiviral properties help stop the growth of harmful bacteria and fungi.

## **Acne Reduction**

Honey's antibacterial and anti-inflammatory properties may help reduce acne.

While acne usually develops due to excess oil production, it's made worse by bacteria called Cutibacterium acnes (C. acnes). Inflammation associated with acne can cause redness, swelling, and soreness in pimples and pustules (pus-filled pimples).

Applying honey to the affected area can help reduce the bacteria that make acne worse. It can also calm inflammation, reducing any redness and puffiness surrounding pimples.

# How do you use honey in your skin care routine?

If you're interested in adding honey to your skin care routine, here are some simple ways to do it yourself:

- **Apply honey directly to your skin.** After cleansing, while your skin is still damp, spread a thin layer of honey on your skin like a mask. Leave it on for 15-20 minutes, then rinse. You can try mixing the honey with other beneficial ingredients like turmeric, which has also been shown to reduce skin inflammation and protect your skin barrier.
- **Use honey as an exfoliating scrub.** Mix 1 tbsp of honey with 1 tsp of brown sugar. Gently massage it onto clean skin, then rinse with warm water. You can use this on your face, lips, and body.
- Mix honey into a cream or ointment. As part of your nighttime routine, add a few drops of honey to a moisturizing cream or ointment, like Aquaphor. Mix thoroughly and apply the cream as you normally would. If the combination feels too sticky for widespread use, apply it as a spot treatment on affected areas.
- **Use honey as a wound dressing.** You can apply honey to gauze and cover wounds with it. For serious wounds, make sure you check in with a healthcare professional honey isn't a replacement for proper medical treatment.

You can also look for skin care products that contain honey. Check the label and make sure honey is listed near the top of the ingredient list. This ensures that there's actually a decent concentration of honey in the product. Ingredients are listed by weight, so if honey is farther down, the product likely doesn't contain enough honey to provide health benefits.

## HONEY AS A NATURAL ENERGY BOOSTER

# The Science Behind Honey's Energy-Boosting Properties

Honey is primarily composed of natural sugars, including glucose and fructose. These simple carbohydrates are quickly absorbed by the body, providing a rapid influx of energy. Unlike refined sugars, which can lead to a sudden spike and crash in blood sugar levels, honey's natural sugars are released more gradually, resulting in a steadier and longer-lasting energy boost.

In addition to its carbohydrate content, honey also contains a variety of vitamins and minerals, such as vitamin B6, niacin, and iron. These nutrients play a crucial role in the body's energy production processes, helping to convert the food you consume into usable energy.

These antioxidants, such as flavonoids and phenolic acids, can help protect your cells from oxidative stress and support your body's natural energy-producing mechanisms.

## How does honey help in maintaining energy levels

Honey is a powerpack that contains natural sugar which helps to maintain your energy level instantly. The additional benefits of honey are the multiple nutrients it has such as vitamins, minerals, antioxidants, iron, calcium, potassium, phosphorus, magnesium along with simple sugar combinations of glucose, sucrose and fructose. The best thing about honey and a sweetener is that it is not going to spike your blood sugar level in any way. A Natural Nectar Honey produced by honeybees can be a healthier and delicious addition to your daily diet. Just having a spoonful of honey everyday before you step out you are a complete powerhouse of carbohydrates to fuel your body and mind with a steady stream of energy. Hence, you can daily consume natural nectar honey as an energy booster.

# How honey helps boost energy

There is a science behind honey's energy boosting properties which says, honey is composed of natural sugar along with fructose and glucose which is simply absorbed by the body gives a rapid influx of energy with imbalancing the blood sugar level unlike refined sugar which causes sudden blood sugar spike. Whereas nectar honey releases more gradually results in a longer lasting energy boost. Honey is not popular as a natural sugar but has a healthier side because of the variety of nutrients available like vitamins, minerals that enhance your body from the inside. Furthermore, to relieve fatigue, honey plays a crucial role as it has antioxidants, flavonoid, and phenolic acid and helps your cells protect themselves from oxidative stress.

# **Incorporating Honey into Your Daily Routine**

Now that you understand the science behind honey's energy-boosting properties, let's explore some practical ways to incorporate it into your daily routine:

## Start Your Day with a Honey-Infused Breakfast

Begin your day with a nourishing breakfast that includes honey. Drizzle it over your oatmeal, yogurt, or whole-grain toast for a delicious and energizing start to your day. The slow-release carbohydrates in honey will help you feel sustained and focused throughout the morning.

# **Fuel Your Workouts with Honey**

Honey can be an excellent natural energy source for your workout routine. Mix a spoonful of honey into your pre-workout smoothie or energy bar to provide a steady supply of carbohydrates to power your exercise session. The natural sugars in honey can help replenish your glycogen stores and support muscle recovery.

# **Enjoy a Honey-Infused Snack**

When that mid-afternoon slump hits, reach for a honey-based snack to give you a natural energy boost. Try spreading honey on whole-grain crackers or apple slices, or mix it into your favorite trail mix. The combination of honey's carbohydrates and the protein or healthy fats in your snack will help sustain your energy levels.

# Sip on a Honey-Infused Beverage

Incorporate honey into your daily beverage routine. Add a spoonful of honey to your tea, coffee, or even a glass of warm water with lemon for a refreshing and energizing pick-me-up. The natural sweetness of honey can also help curb your cravings for sugary drinks, making it a healthier alternative.

## **Explore Honey-Based Recipes**

Experiment with honey-based recipes to add variety and energy-boosting benefits to your meals and snacks. From honey-roasted vegetables to honey-mustard dressings, the possibilities are endless. Incorporating honey into your cooking and baking can not only provide a natural energy boost but also add a delightful flavor to your dishes.

## **Conclusion**

Honey's natural energy-boosting properties make it a versatile and valuable addition to your daily routine. Embrace the sweetness of honey and let it become your go-to natural energy booster for a healthier, more energized you.

# **IMPROVING SLEEP QUALITY NATURALLY**

# **Honey to Improve Sleep Quality**

## **About**

Inadequate sleep quality and duration affects quality of life, and can cause adverse health outcomes, for many Canadians. Existing sleep therapies have limitations, such as inability to adhere to a cognitive behaviour modification or the risk of dependence on pharmaceutical therapies. Raw honey has a long history of anecdotal reports supporting its use to improve sleep quality. In an effort to develop an evidence base for honey as a sleep aid, we completed a preliminary proof-of-principle study to assess feasibility and potential effectiveness of honey to improve sleep quality. Results of our preliminary study demonstrate that honey is safe and effective for improving quality of sleep with no associated adverse effects, as compared to melatonin. The current study design builds off the experiences of the preliminary trial and will add more scientific rigor to the evidence base we have started to build.

Inadequate sleep quality and duration may result in adverse health outcomes and poorer quality of life. Research thus far identify interventions such as behavior modification and pharmaceuticals to aid sleep. According to Stats Canada (2007-2013 Canadian Health Measures Survey), despite these available interventions, roughly half of men and women (43% and 55%, respectively) aged 18-64 have difficulty falling or staying asleep; these results are similar to those reported in 2005. The lack of improvement in sleep might reflect important limitations with the current interventions; individuals with sleep disorders may find adherence to such interventions difficult to maintain (e.g. behavior modification) or the therapies may pose a risk (e.g. dependence on pharmaceuticals). There is a clear need for alternative therapeutic interventions, particularly those that are simple and cost effective.

Based on this information, we completed a preliminary open-label proof-of-principle study to assess the feasibility and potential effectiveness of honey in improving sleep quality. In a cross-over study of poor sleepers, honey improved some areas of sleep compared to melatonin. The results of this study are the driving factor for the randomized, double-blind, cross-over study in poor sleepers proposed here.

# **How Does Honey Improve Sleep Quality?**

**Tryptophan and Serotonin Production:** Honey contains the amino acid tryptophan, a precursor to serotonin, a neurotransmitter that contributes to feelings of relaxation and well-being. Consuming foods rich in tryptophan, like honey, might aid in the production of serotonin, potentially promoting better sleep.

**Regulation of Insulin and Glucose Levels:** Consuming a small amount of honey before bedtime could help stabilize blood sugar levels throughout the night. Stable blood sugar levels may prevent disruptions in sleep caused by sudden drops in blood sugar, leading to improved sleep quality.

**Promotion of Melatonin Release:** Honey might stimulate the release of melatonin, a hormone crucial for regulating the sleep-wake cycle. Although the direct effect of honey on melatonin is not fully understood, some studies suggest that certain components in honey might support the body's production of melatonin.

# How Honey Helps You Sleep Better: The Science Behind It

# 1. Regulates Blood Sugar and Prevents Nighttime Wake-Ups

One of the main reasons people wake up in the middle of the night is fluctuating blood sugar levels. When blood sugar drops too low, the body releases stress hormones like cortisol and adrenaline, which can disrupt sleep.

A teaspoon of Natural Raw Multiflora Honey before bed provides a steady supply of glucose, ensuring that your liver has enough glycogen to keep blood sugar levels stable throughout the night. This helps you avoid sudden awakenings and enjoy uninterrupted sleep.

# 2. Promotes the Release of Sleep Hormones

Honey indirectly contributes to the production of melatonin, the hormone responsible for regulating sleep. Here's how:

- Honey contains natural sugars that cause a small rise in insulin levels.
- This insulin boost facilitates the release of tryptophan, an amino acid that is converted into serotonin.
- Serotonin then transforms into melatonin, signaling your body that it's time to sleep.

By stimulating melatonin production, honey helps regulate your sleep-wake cycle, making it easier to fall asleep naturally.

# 3. Supports Liver Function During Sleep

Your liver plays a crucial role in sustaining energy levels while you sleep. During deep sleep, your brain needs a steady supply of fuel, primarily in the form of liver glycogen.

Since oRegion's Natural Raw Multiflora Honey is rich in natural pollen and wild herb enzymes, it helps replenish liver glycogen stores, ensuring that your brain has enough energy to maintain deep, restorative sleep.

# 4. Reduces Stress and Anxiety

Chronic stress and anxiety are among the top culprits behind poor sleep. Honey has been shown to have a calming effect on the brain by reducing oxidative stress and lowering cortisol levels. When combined with lukewarm milk or herbal tea, honey acts as a natural sedative, relaxing the nervous system and preparing your body for sleep.

# 5. Strengthens the Immune System While You Sleep

Sleep is when the body repairs and rejuvenates itself. Honey, especially oRegion's Natural Raw Multiflora Honey, contains antioxidants, antibacterial properties, and vital nutrients that boost the immune system. Regular consumption before bed helps your body fight infections, promoting overall well-being and restful sleep.

# 6. Helps Reduce Snoring

Snoring is often caused by throat inflammation and mucus buildup. The anti-inflammatory properties of honey help soothe the throat and reduce congestion, making it easier to breathe smoothly while sleeping

# Is Honey the Solution for Insomnia?

While honey can significantly improve sleep quality, it is not a cure-all for chronic insomnia. If you suffer from persistent sleep problems, underlying issues such as stress, diet, and medical conditions may be at play. Consulting a healthcare professional is recommended if sleep disturbances persist.

However, for occasional sleeplessness or difficulty falling asleep, honey is a safe, natural, and effective alternative to synthetic sleep aids.

## **MOOD ENHANCEMENT & STRESS REDUCTION**

# The Science Behind Honey and Mood Improvement

Honey is filled with vitamins, minerals, and antioxidants that positively impact our mood. The natural sugars in honey can boost serotonin levels, providing a natural mood lift. Plus, honey's anti-inflammatory and antioxidant properties can reduce oxidative stress and inflammation, both linked to depression.

"Research suggests that polyphenol compounds in honey like apigenin, caffeic acid, chrysin, ellagic acid, and quercetin support a healthy nervous system, enhancing memory and supporting mood," says Blatner. A 2014 review indicates that honey aids the central nervous system's development, especially in young children, leading to improved memory, reduced anxiety, and better intellectual performance later in life.

# How can honey brighten your mood during dark days?

Honey contains natural sugars that can boost serotonin levels, helping improve mood and energy. It also has antioxidants that promote overall well-being.

# What are the best ways to use honey for mood-boosting?

You can add honey to your tea, smoothies, or oatmeal for a mood-boosting treat, or simply enjoy a spoonful to feel an instant lift.

Honey is a natural remedy with numerous benefits for mood improvement and overall well-being.

# **Next Steps in Mood Boosting With Honey**

Beyond the laboratory setting, individuals have reported anecdotal evidence supporting the mood-enhancing effects of honey. Many have incorporated honey into their daily routines, whether by adding it to tea, drizzling it over yogurt, or using it as a natural sweetener in recipes. The testimonials highlight a general sense of improved mood, increased energy levels, and a more positive outlook on life.

It's important to note that while these personal experiences are promising, they are not a substitute for rigorous scientific research. As with any natural remedy, individual responses may vary, and consulting with a healthcare professional is advisable, especially for those with existing health conditions or concerns.

## Raw Honey and Cortisol: A Sweet Solution for Stress Management

In today's fast-paced world, stress is a common challenge that can wreak havoc on our health. One key player in the stress response is cortisol, a hormone produced by the adrenal glands. While cortisol is essential for regulating

metabolism, blood sugar, and inflammation, chronically elevated levels can lead to issues like anxiety, weight gain, and weakened immunity. Fortunately, nature offers a delicious ally in managing cortisol levels: raw honey. This golden elixir isn't just a sweetener—it's a nutrient-packed superfood with potential benefits for stress hormone regulation. Let's explore how raw honey affects cortisol and why incorporating it into your diet could be a game-changer for your well-being.

## Rich in Antioxidants to Combat Oxidative Stress

Chronic stress increases oxidative stress, which can elevate cortisol production. Raw honey is packed with antioxidants, such as flavonoids and phenolic compounds, that neutralize free radicals and reduce oxidative damage. A 2017 review in Pharmacognosy Research highlighted honey's potent antioxidant properties, noting its ability to protect cells from stress-induced damage.

By reducing oxidative stress, raw honey may indirectly lower cortisol levels, supporting a healthier stress response and protecting against the long-term effects of elevated cortisol, such as inflammation and tissue damage.

## **Conclusion**

Honey is a noteworthy player when it comes to mood enhancement, with scientific studies exploring its impact on serotonin levels, antioxidant content, and the gut-brain connection. The journey through these insights suggests that honey might be more than just a delicious sweetener—it could be a natural ally in the pursuit of improved emotional well-being.

As the debate over honey's mood-boosting potential continues, both scientific findings and personal testimonials converge on the idea that honey could be a valuable addition to one's daily routine. Whether drizzled over breakfast or stirred into a calming cup of tea, honey invites individuals to explore its sweet potential as a mood-enhancing elixir.

## **DIFFERENT TYPES OF HONEY AND THEIR POTENCY**

# Types of Honey in India

There is 800+ different types of honey in the world and 300 + types of honey in India, each with its own unique flavor, color, and texture. Here are some of the most popular types of honey:

**Acacia honey:** Acacia honey has a light color and a delicate, floral flavor. It is known for its high fructose content, which makes it a popular sweetener for diabetics.

**Manuka honey:** Manuka honey is produced in New Zealand from the nectar of the Manuka tree. It is known for its antibacterial properties and is often used to treat wounds and sore throats.

**Clover honey:** Clover honey is a popular variety in the United States and Canada. It has a mild, sweet flavor and a light color.

**Buckwheat honey:** Buckwheat honey has a dark color and a strong, earthy flavor. It is high in antioxidants and is often used as a natural cough suppressant.

**Eucalyptus honey:** Eucalyptus honey is produced from the nectar of the eucalyptus tree. It has a strong, slightly medicinal flavor and is often used to treat respiratory issues.

**Orange blossom honey:** Orange blossom honey is produced from the nectar of orange blossoms. It has a light color and a sweet, citrusy flavor.

**Lavender honey:** Lavender honey is produced from the nectar of lavender flowers. It has a light color and a delicate, floral flavor.

**Tupelo honey:** Tupelo honey is produced from the nectar of the Tupelo tree. It has a light color and a sweet, buttery flavor.

**Sidr honey** is a type of honey that is produced in Yemen, India and some parts of Saudi Arabia from the nectar of the sidr tree (also known as the jujube tree). It is considered one of the rarest and most expensive types of honey in the world due to the difficulty in harvesting it.

Sidr honey is also rich in antioxidants, vitamins, and minerals, making it a nutritious and healthy food. Some studies suggest that it may have antibacterial and anti-inflammatory properties, which could make it useful in fighting infections and reducing inflammation in the body.

Due to its high price and limited availability, sidr honey is often considered a luxury item and is used for special occasions and gifts. It is also used in some religious and cultural ceremonies in Yemen, India and Saudi Arabia.

**Dew honey,** also known as forest honey, is a type of honey that is produced by honeybees from the dew on the flowers and plants in the forest. Unlike other types of honey, which are produced from the nectar of flowers, dew honey is produced from the sugary secretions that accumulate on leaves and other plant parts overnight.

Dew honey is a popular choice for those who are looking for a unique and high-quality honey that is rich in flavor and nutrition. It is often used as a natural sweetener and is also used in some traditional medicines and remedies.

**Kalshi Flora Honey** is a type of honey that is produced in the Kalshi region of Bangladesh. It is named after the Kalshi flower, which is the primary source of nectar for the bees that produce this honey. The Kalshi flower is a type of wildflower that blooms in the region during the monsoon season.

Kalshi Flora Honey has a light color and a delicate, floral flavor that is often described as slightly tangy or sour. It is also known for its health benefits and is rich in antioxidants and enzymes that can help boost the immune system and promote digestive health.

**Mad honey,** also known as deli bal or grayanotoxin honey, is a type of honey that is produced by bees that collect nectar from certain types of rhododendron flowers. This honey is called "mad" because it can cause intoxication or poisoning if consumed in large quantities.

Mad honey contains grayanotoxins, a type of neurotoxin that can affect the central nervous system. Symptoms of mad honey poisoning can include dizziness, weakness, sweating, vomiting, and in severe cases, heart palpitations and convulsions.

**Kashmiri white honey** is a type of honey that is produced in the Kashmir valley of India. It is also known as Kashmir honey or Himalayan honey. This honey is produced by bees that forage on the flowers of wild Himalayan plants and trees.

Kashmiri white honey is a light-colored honey with a delicate and floral flavor. It is high in antioxidants, vitamins, and minerals, making it a nutritious and healthy food. The honey is also known for its medicinal properties and is often used in Ayurvedic medicine to treat a range of ailments, including coughs, colds, and digestive problems.

**Black honey** is a type of honey that is produced by the Giant Asian honey bee (Apis dorsata) in parts of Southeast Asia, including India, Malaysia, Indonesia, and Thailand. The honey gets its dark color from the high concentration of

minerals and antioxidants found in the nectar of certain flowers that the bees collect.

Black honey has a unique taste that is often described as bold and earthy, with a slightly bitter aftertaste. It is also known for its medicinal properties and has been used for centuries in traditional medicine to treat a range of ailments, including sore throat, cough, and digestive issues.

**Multiflora honey** is a type of honey that is produced by bees that collect nectar from a variety of flowers and plants, rather than a single type of flower or plant. The exact composition of the nectar and pollen that the bees collect can vary depending on the location and season, resulting in different flavors and colors of multiflora honey.

Multiflora honey is rich in antioxidants, vitamins, and minerals, making it a healthy food choice. It also has antibacterial and anti-inflammatory properties, which can make it beneficial for treating minor skin irritations and infections.

**Uniflora honey,** also known as monofloral honey, is a type of honey that is produced by bees that collect nectar primarily from a single species of flower or plant. This results in a honey with a distinct flavor and color profile that reflects the characteristics of the specific flower or plant species.

Some common types of uniflora honey include clover honey, orange blossom honey, and manuka honey. Clover honey is produced by bees that primarily collect nectar from clover flowers, resulting in a light-colored honey with a mild, sweet flavor. Orange blossom honey is produced by bees that primarily collect nectar from orange blossoms, resulting in a honey with a light color and a citrusy flavor. Manuka honey is produced by bees that collect nectar from the manuka tree in New Zealand, and is known for its antibacterial properties and rich, earthy flavor.

**Mahua flora honey** is a type of honey that is produced by bees that collect nectar from the flowers of the Mahua tree (Madhuca longifolia), which is native to India. The honey has a distinct flavor that is slightly sweet with a hint of bitterness, and a dark amber color.

Mahua flora honey has been used in Ayurvedic medicine for its therapeutic properties, such as its antibacterial, anti-inflammatory, and antioxidant properties. It is also a good source of vitamins and minerals, including vitamin C, iron, calcium, and potassium.

**Stingless bee honey,** Stingless bee honey has been used in traditional medicine in various cultures for its potential health benefits, such as its antibacterial and antioxidant properties. It is also a good source of vitamins and minerals, including vitamin C, iron, and calcium.

**Coffee honey** is a rare and unique type of honey that is produced by bees that collect nectar from the flowers of coffee plants. Coffee plants produce small, white flowers that have a sweet nectar that bees collect to make honey.

Coffee honey is a good source of antioxidants, vitamins, and minerals, and it is believed to have a range of health benefits, including antibacterial, anti-inflammatory, and digestive properties. It is also commonly used as a natural sweetener and flavoring in coffee, tea, and baked goods.

**Sunflower honey** is a type of honey that is produced by bees that collect nectar from sunflower plants. Sunflowers produce large, yellow flowers that are rich in nectar and attract bees and other pollinators.

Sunflower honey is a good source of antioxidants, vitamins, and minerals, and it is believed to have a range of health benefits, including anti-inflammatory and anti-bacterial properties. It is also known to have a high concentration of pollen, which can be beneficial for people with seasonal allergies.

**Karanj honey** is a type of honey that is produced by bees that collect nectar from the flowers of the Karanj tree (Pongamia pinnata), which is native to India, Southeast Asia, and Australia.

The flavor of Karanj honey is strong and distinctive, with a slightly bitter taste and a rich, caramel-like sweetness. It has a dark brown color and a thick, viscous texture. Karanj honey is prized for its medicinal properties and is used in traditional Ayurvedic medicine to treat a range of health conditions, including coughs, colds, and digestive disorders.

Karanj honey is a good source of antioxidants, vitamins, and minerals, and it is believed to have anti-inflammatory and anti-bacterial properties.

**Mustard honey** is a type of honey that is produced by bees that collect nectar from mustard plants. Mustard plants produce small, yellow flowers that have a pungent and spicy aroma, which is reflected in the flavor of the honey.

Mustard honey is a good source of antioxidants, vitamins, and minerals, and it is believed to have anti-inflammatory and antibacterial properties. It is also known to have a high concentration of pollen, which can be beneficial for people with seasonal allergies.

**Solai honey** is a type of honey that is produced in the Solai region of Tamil Nadu, India. The honey is made by bees that collect nectar from a variety of flowers, including neem, mango, and tamarind.

Solai honey is a good source of antioxidants, vitamins, and minerals, and it is believed to have a range of health benefits, including anti-inflammatory and anti-bacterial properties. It is also known to have a high concentration of pollen, which can be beneficial for people with seasonal allergies.

**Jamun honey** is a type of honey that is made by bees that collect nectar from the flowers of the jamun tree (Syzygium cumini), which is native to India and Southeast Asia. The jamun tree produces small, fragrant flowers that are rich in nectar and attract bees and other pollinators.

The flavor of jamun honey is rich and fruity, with a deep, caramel-like sweetness and a slightly bitter aftertaste. It has a dark brown color and a thick, viscous texture.

**Chichri Honey** Chichri Honey, also called Indian Borage honey, comes from the remote Himalayan regions. It is collected from the nectar of the Chichri (Indian Borage) plant, which only blooms once every 3 to 4 years.

Chichri Honey is loaded with antioxidants, which help the body fight off harmful free radicals.

It also has anti-inflammatory properties that can soothe sore throats and help with respiratory issues like asthma. People also use it for improving their skin and easing symptoms of insomnia.

**Berry Honey** Berry Honey is made by bees that collect nectar from different types of wild berries growing in the Himalayas. It gives the honey a sweet and fruity flavor, which makes it a favorite for many.

Berry honey is full of antioxidants that protect your body from damage caused by free radicals, substances that can harm your cells.

It also provides a natural energy boost, supports digestion, and strengthens the immune system, helping the body fight off infections.

**Wildflower Honey** Wildflower Honey is made from the nectar of various flowers that grow in the wild. Its taste can vary depending on which flowers the bees visit, but it generally has a mildly sweet and floral flavor.

Wildflower Honey is often used to reduce allergic reactions. It has antioxidants that help protect the body from diseases and keep the skin healthy.

It can soothe sore throats and aid digestion, making it a great natural remedy for many everyday health issues.

**Kikar Honey** Kikar Honey or Acacia Honey, comes from the nectar of the Kikar tree, which is also known as Robinia pseudoacacia. The honey is famous for its mild, sweet flavor and clear, golden appearance. It's often used as a sweetener because of its delicate taste.

Kikar Honey is great for boosting the immune system, thanks to its antioxidant content. It can also help with digestive issues and is used as a natural remedy for coughs and sore throats.

It is known for its ability to fight infections and soothe inflammation, making it useful for respiratory problems

**Kikar and Ajwain Honey** Ajwain is known for its strong, spicy flavor, which combines with the sweet nectar of the Kikar tree to create a rich, bold honey. Being dual-origin honey, Ajwain honey offers the benefits of acacia honey or locust honey and Ajwain honey, also known as Trachyspermum Ammi honey.

Kikar Ajwain Honey is very helpful for digestion, as it combines the digestive properties of Ajwain with the soothing sweetness of honey.

It is also good for boosting the immune system and is often used to relieve cold and cough symptoms. Its anti-inflammatory properties help in reducing inflammation in the body which makes it beneficial for overall health

**Litchi Honey** Litchi Honey, also known as Lychee Honey, is produced from the nectar of litchi tree blossoms. The honey is light amber to dark golden in color and has a distinctive sweet, floral taste that mirrors the fragrance of the litchi fruit.

Litchi Honey is rich in antioxidants, which help in reducing oxidative stress and protecting cells from damage. Its antibacterial properties support a healthy immune system, and it can also soothe sore throats and coughs.

In addition, the honey's enzymes aid in digestion by breaking down complex sugars and promoting better nutrient absorption. It's also a natural moisturizer, benefiting skin vitality.

# **HOW TO USE HONEY MEDICINALLY (DOSAGE & METHODS)**

Honey is a thick, sweet fluid produced by bees from plant nectars. It is commonly used as a sweetener in food, but should be avoided in infants.

Some chemicals in honey might kill certain bacteria and fungus. When applied to the skin, honey might serve as a barrier to moisture and keep skin from sticking to wound dressings. It might also provide nutrients and chemicals that speed wound healing. But honey can become contaminated with germs during production. Although rare, some infants have gotten botulism from taking honey by mouth.

People commonly use honey for burns, wound healing, swelling and sores inside the mouth, and cough. It is also used for many other conditions but there is no good scientific evidence to support most of these other uses. There is also no good evidence to support using honey for COVID-19.

# **Clinical Overview**

## Use

Honeybee products have been used historically worldwide, both topically and internally, as remedies for a variety of illnesses. Limited data from mainly small trials of varying quality indicate that honeybee products may be of some benefit for conditions including seasonal allergy symptoms (honey), herpetic lesions and warts (propolis), cough (honey), dry eye (royal jelly, honey), dry mouth (honey), eye surgery antibacterial prophylaxis (honey), oral mucositis (propolis, royal jelly), and rosacea (honey). Data supporting the use of honeybee products for other indications are equivocal and/or not well substantiated.

# Dosing

Use of honey is not recommended in children younger than 12 months due to increased risk of botulism/paralysis.

The type of honeybee product, plant species of origin, methods of processing, and doseform have all been shown to affect the appropriate dose and duration, safety, and effectiveness. See specific indications in Uses and Pharmacology section.

## **Contraindications**

The American Academy of Pediatrics and the World Health Organization (WHO) recommend that honey should not be given to infants younger than 12 months due to the potential for botulism. Allergy to bee venom is considered a relative contraindication to royal jelly. Other contraindications have not been identified for honey, bee pollen, or royal jelly.

# **Pregnancy/Lactation**

Clinical data regarding safety and efficacy of honeybee products in pregnancy and lactation are lacking. Honey is generally recognized as safe (GRAS) during pregnancy and lactation when used as food.

## **Interactions**

None well documented for honey or propolis. Case reports of warfarin potentiation have been documented with bee pollen and royal jelly.

# **Possibly Effective for**

**Burns.** Applying honey preparations directly to burns seems to improve healing.

**Cough.** Taking a small amount of honey by mouth at bedtime appears to reduce coughing spells in children aged 2 years and older. Honey appears to be at least as effective as the cough medicine dextromethorphan. But it is not clear if honey reduces cough in adults.

**Foot sores** in people with diabetes. Applying dressings containing honey to diabetic foot ulcers seems to reduce healing time and prevent the need for antibiotics.

**Dry eye.** Using specific honey eye drops or eye gel in the eyes helps to make dry eyes feel better. These products can be used along with regular dry eye treatment such as lubricant drops and warm cloths on the eyes.

**Cold sores (herpes labialis)**. Applying honey to cold sores seems to improve healing time.

**Sores and ulcers** of the mouth and gums caused by herpes virus (herpetic gingivostomatitis). Rinsing the mouth and then slowly swallowing honey helps these sores and ulcers heal faster in children who are taking a medication called acyclovir.

**Swelling (inflammation) and sores inside the mouth (oral mucositis).** Rinsing the mouth and then slowly swallowing honey before and after chemotherapy or radiation therapy sessions seems to reduce the risk of developing mouth sores.

A skin condition that causes redness on the face (rosacea). Applying a topical honey product to the skin might improve symptoms of rosacea.

**Wound healing.** Applying honey preparations directly to wounds or using dressings containing honey seems to improve healing. Honey seems to reduce odors and pus, help clean the wound, reduce infection, reduce pain, and decrease time to healing.

# **Special Precautions and Warnings**

**When taken by mouth:** Honey is likely safe for most adults. But when honey is produced from the nectar of rhododendrons, it is likely unsafe. This type of honey contains a toxin that may cause heart problems, low blood pressure, and chest pain.

When applied to the skin or on the inside of the mouth: Honey is likely safe for most adults.

**When applied into the eye:** It is possibly safe to use specific eye drops containing manuka honey. These eye drops are usually applied into the eyes 2-3 times daily for up to 4 weeks.

**When applied into the nose:** Diluted manuka honey solution is possibly safe for most adults when sprayed into the nose for up to 2 weeks.

**Pregnancy and breast-feeding:** Honey is likely safe when taken in food amounts. But there isn't enough reliable information to know if it is safe to use honey in medicinal amounts when pregnant or breast-feeding. Stay on the safe side and stick to the amounts found in foods.

**Children:** Honey is likely safe when taken by mouth in children who are at least one year old. Honey is possibly unsafe when taken by mouth by children less than 12 months old. Do not use honey in infants under 12 months old. Botulism poisoning is a risk at this age. But this is not a danger for older children or adults.

**Diabetes:** Using large amounts of honey might increase blood sugar levels in people with type 2 diabetes. Honey contains sugar and should be used in moderation.

**Pollen allergies:** Avoid honey if you are allergic to pollen. Honey, which is made from pollen, may cause allergic reactions.

## SCIENTIFIC STUDIES AND MODERN RESEARCH

## **Abstract**

Honey has been used for its nutritional and medicinal values since the Stone Age. Being one of the oldest foods known to humans, honey as a natural product has become an important part of food, economy and health care for most of the population. Honey stands as the most vastly discussed natural product across religions and civilizations. Traditional knowledge of these natural products has served as the base for many breakthrough discoveries, especially in the medicinal field. Today honey holds a strong position among its natural counterparts in terms of the global market. This chapter provides an in-depth review of historical evidences of honey in different civilizations, religions and cultures, its use as an ethnomedicine, its application in different traditional system of medicine like Unani and Ayurveda, its physico-chemical properties, its modern application as antioxidant, antimicrobial, wound healing and antiviral agent, its application in ophthalmology, cough, diabetes and inflammation, intellectual properties and patent insights on honey, and industry and marketing insights of honey.

# The early research

Humans have used honey for its healing properties for thousands of years, and now with on-going research scientists are able to explain the reasons behind its medicinal power. Numerous scientific studies show that Manuka honey kills superbugs and stimulates wound healing.

Early scientific research into Manuka honey stimulated significant interest and further research, enhancing our understanding of the health benefits of Manuka honey.

The original research on Manuka honey was carried out by Dr Peter Molan at the Honey Research Institute at the University of Waikato in New Zealand. The late Dr Molan's findings gave rise to a significant interest in the potential for Manuka honey to be used in wound dressings and care of complex ailments, including diabetic leg ulcers, and as a replacement for pressure dressings. Healing time was decreased, patient comfort increased and scar formation was minimised.

Various species of the Manuka plant produce different levels of DHA in their nectar. When bees collect this nectar and make it into honey, the DHA naturally converts itself to MGO.

The research that revealed the therapeutic benefits of Manuka honey led to the use of Manuka honey for wound care dressings, and led to a surge in its popularity and demand. This increased demand resulted in further funds being made available for research, research which is ongoing today.

## PRECAUTIONS & CONTRAINDICATIONS

Honey is a viscous substance rich in a number of nutrients. In Ayurveda, it is called "Perfection of Sweet".

Honey is one of the best known home remedies for dry and wet cough. It can be taken along with some ginger juice and black pepper to help relieve cough and throat irritation. Having Honey in lukewarm water every morning improves digestion and helps manage weight. It is a good alternative to sugar and can be taken by diabetics due to its low glycemic index.

Honey can be applied on burns and wounds to help prevent infection and promote healing. This is due to its antibacterial and antioxidant properties. It can also nourish and soothe your skin in case of sunburn.

In some cases, consuming excessive honey may lead to diarrhea. Pregnant or breastfeeding women should avoid taking raw Honey as it may contain certain contaminants that harm the developing baby and the mother.

## **Contraindications for use**

Even if honey can offer many health benefits, there are some restrictions to keep in mind. It is contraindicated for the following patient populations:

**Children under 2 years of age:** up until the second year of age, children's digestive systems are not fully developed. Consuming honey which can pose a high risk for botulism infections, due to the bacteria present in it.

**Diabetics:** Although honey has many benefits in comparison to white sugar, diabetics should avoid consuming honey, as it contains simple sugars that increase blood sugar levels.

**History of allergies:** Patients with an allergy to honey may present with symptoms like skin redness, itching throughout the body and throat, swollen lips, and tearing. Therefore, honey and any food containing honey should be avoided altogether in this population.

**Fructose intolerance:** Because fructose is present in honey, people with a fructose intolerance should avoid eating it.

**Irritable bowel syndrome:** Some people with this disease can experience indigestion, excess gas and diarrhea after consuming honey. It is rich in fructose, which can trigger these symptoms. In these cases, honey consumption should be avoided.

If these considerations do not apply to you, and given honey can provide many benefits, this food can easily be inserted into your daily diet.

# **Honey Properties and Contraindications**

All foods have downsides too. Honey contraindications mainly concern:

- **Children under one year:** honey may contain botulinum spores, dangerous for infants;
- Diabetic individuals: due to its sugar content, it can raise blood glucose;
- Allergies: rare, but some may be allergic to pollen in honey;
- **Overconsumption:** may cause weight gain, sugar addiction, and dental issues.

# **Contraindications of Wildflower Honey**

Wildflower honey is among the most popular types. However, it may have contraindications for those allergic to pollen or with digestive issues. In such cases, it's better to choose a more delicate type like acacia honey.

## Conclusion

Honey is one of nature's most valuable foods. Its properties make it ideal as a natural sweetener with health benefits. However, like everything, it should be consumed in moderation to avoid side effects.

Apicoltura Laterza always recommends choosing high-quality Italian honey, preferably organic and traceable like ours. This way, you can enjoy all the benefits and be aware of the possible contraindications.

## **Safety Precautions for Consuming Honey**

It is vital to exercise caution and adhere to the following safety precautions when consuming honey:

- Avoid giving honey to babies under the age of 1 to prevent the risk of infant botulism. The immature digestive systems of infants can struggle to handle the spores present in honey, which can lead to a serious illness known as infant botulism.
- If you have known allergies to bee-related products or pollen, consult a healthcare professional before consuming honey to determine if it is safe for you.
- If you have diabetes, carefully monitor your blood sugar levels when consuming honey, as it can affect glucose levels.
- Ensure you consume honey in moderation and maintain a balanced diet overall.

By following these safety precautions and consuming honey responsibly, you can enjoy its potential health benefits while minimizing the risk of adverse effects.

#### **NATURE'S SWEET MEDICINE**

Honey has been used across cultures and through ages as a natural healer and health rejuvenator. It is a must in every Indian household and holds a special medicinal significance that has run down through generations. And, there is a logical reason for it. Honey is packed with countless healthy nutrients, minerals, vitamins and natural sugars that are vital to overall health and immunity.

## **NUTRITIONAL FACTS**

One tablespoon of raw honey contains around 60 calories. Honey is fat free, cholesterol free and also free from sodium. 80% of the honey is carbohydrates, 18% is water and the remaining 2 % is vitamins, minerals and other nutrients. Raw honey is packed with Vitamin B6, thiamine, niacin, riboflavin and pantothenic acid as well as calcium, copper, iron, magnesium, manganese, phosphorus, potassium, sodium and zinc.

## **HEALTH BENEFITS**

Here are some amazing health benefits of honey:

## **Prevents Infections**

Honey has antibacterial and antifungal properties. This is because the bees add an enzyme that makes hydrogen peroxide which has infection fighting abilities. This is also the secret behind an incredibly long shelf-life of honey.

# **Acts As A Probiotic**

Certain varieties of honey are loaded with gut friendly bacteria. These include various species of lactobacilli and bifidobacteria. You can add half a spoon to a cup of milk to improve your digestive health.

# **Fights Allergies**

Honey is an excellent remedy for coughs, cold and allergies especially the buckwheat honey. It also helps in relieving night-time coughing in children and helps them sleep through the night.

# **Improves Sleep**

Honey can be a health aid for sleepless nights. This is because it helps release of serotonin, the hormone that improves mood. Serotonin is in turn converted into melatonin, which regulates length and quality of sleep.

## **Treats Dandruff**

Honey can help in getting rid of dandruff owing to its anti-fungal properties. It is also a remedy for treating seborrheic dermatitis and seborrheic dandruff, which

are often caused by an overgrowth of fungus. Also, honey has anti-inflammatory properties, which relieve redness and itching on the scalp. You can add a spoonful of honey with half a cup of water and apply it on the scalp. Leave for half an hour and rinse off with a mild shampoo.

# **Helps In Healing Wounds**

Honey helps in healing wounds and burns. This can be due to the drying effect of the simple sugars and honey's anti-bacterial nature which combine to create this effect.

## **Moisturizes The Skin**

Honey has been used since ages to add glow and moisture to dull skin. Being a humectant, it helps lock the moisture and imparts a vibrant sheen and glow to skin. Also, its anti-bacterial qualities are particularly useful for the skin, and, when used with the other ingredients like turmeric or rosewater it can improve skin texture.

## **Helps Prevent Cancer**

Honey is loaded with flavonoids, that are antioxidants. Antioxidants help the body get rid of free radicals which in turn helps prevent cancers. They also help in fighting ageing and improve the overall well being.

## **WAYS TO USE**

There are countless healthy ways to incorporate honey into your daily diet and reap its health benefits. You can try these for a start:

- Have a teaspoon of honey with a glass of warm water or warm milk in the morning to help you fight allergies and cough.
- Use honey to sweeten your dressings or shakes.
- Add honey to your coffee or tea.
- Add honey to your yogurt, cereal, or oatmeal for a more natural sweetener.
- Add half a spoon of honey to Chas, thandai, sharbet, lemon juice and other cooling drinks.

## THINGS TO REMEMBER

- To get maximum health benefits, make sure the honey is pure and raw.
   Raw honey contains vitamins, minerals and enzymes not present in refined honey.
- Do not give honey to infants. Honey may contain spores of bacteria clostridium botulinum. This is not dangerous to adults and older children, but infants can have a serious reaction to illness in the first year.
- Remember that honey is a form of sugar. So, make sure you consume it in moderation.

## **Bibliography**

## The Healing Power of Honey

## A Therapeutic Guide to Ancient Remedies and Medicinal Benefits

#### 1. Introduction to Honey as Medicine

https://www.medicalnewstoday.com/articles/264667

https://www.intechopen.com/chapters/68256

https://pmc.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/articles/PMC5424551/

#### 2. Historical Uses of Honey in Healing

https://www.hmpgloballearningnetwork.com/site/wounds/article/7749

https://www.amesfarm.com/blogs/historical-honey/the-historical-importance-of-honey-from-ancient-traditions-to-modern-day-

uses?srsltid=AfmBOook9hCbxUyayfmNyZI3qUFhmil65zRZUfpa1ACwG6xWsb\_pqjwk

## 3. Nutritional Composition of Honey

https://www.eufic.org/en/healthy-living/article/the-health-benefits-of-honey-and-its-nutritional-value

# 4. Antibacterial & Antifungal Properties

https://pubmed.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/23569748/

https://www.biochemjournal.com/archives/2024/vol8issue1/PartE/8-1-62-601.pdf

https://www.ijidonline.com/article/S1201-9712(08)01192-2/fulltext

## 5. Powerful Antioxidant Effects

file:///C:/Users/Rohan/Downloads/359-Article%20Text-1016-1-10-20240222.pdf

https://www.researchgate.net/publication/347914606\_Honey\_A\_Powerful\_Natural\_Antioxidant\_and Its Possible Mechanism of Action

https://journal.pan.olsztyn.pl/Antioxidant-Effect-of-Natural-Honeys-Affected-by-Their-Source-and-Origin,98411,0,2.html

## 6. Natural Anti-inflammatory Benefits

https://pmc.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/articles/PMC7807510/

Anti-inflammatory properties

https://www.medicalnewstoday.com/articles/honey-for-skin#benefits

# 7. Boosting the Immune System

https://www.healthshots.com/healthy-eating/superfoods/raw-honey-for-immunity/

#### 8. Wound Healing & Tissue Regeneration

https://www.medanta.org/patient-education-blog/the-benefits-of-honey-for-wound-healing-and-skin-health

https://www.japitherapy.com/japitherapy-articles/impact-of-honey-on-tissue-regeneration-and-its-application-101255.html

https://www.liebertpub.com/doi/abs/10.1089/wound.2018.0848

## 9. Honey as a Cough Suppressant

https://www.mayoclinic.org/symptoms/cough/expert-answers/honey/faq-20058031

https://www.goodrx.com/conditions/cough/does-honey-help-

cough?srsltid=AfmBOoo5EG2 8mUyLDV4S5dHHaAZqAQU0afBL8Y7hfinBWDRQCGCyL0v

## 10. Digestive Health & Stomach Relief

https://www.daburhoney.com/benefits-of-honey/honey-for-health/honey-for-digestion

https://www.bharathoney.com/bharat-honey-blog/honey-for-upset-

stomach/?srsltid = AfmBOooO3NjQjsjhZHPD7bkgySVXlBRxOVakABWEimaKrIgxq5zSX02Ginder (Stomach) + Stomach/?srsltid + St

https://gwellth.com/honey-support-gut-health-and-boost-digestion-

naturally/?srsltid=AfmBOooIElsDBudP7ruTeBNmEUx57VK0zqiU5ILU eWXjxDUz8LX0GxR

# 11. Prebiotic Effects and Gut Health

https://thegoodbug.com/blogs/news/is-honey-good-for-gut-health-benefits?srsltid=AfmBOoq6o-vKzqOBYSeRUjfB3unrdllYcz13FDXT2kwYi4QErfxWnW4K

https://www.taylorfrancis.com/chapters/edit/10.1201/9781003490180-6/honey-potential-prebiotic-younis-ahmad-hajam-neelam

#### 12. Antiviral Actions of Honey

https://www.manawahoney.co.nz/blog/antiviral-benefits-of-

honey/?srsltid=AfmBOortIsV9dz5eUyFAC6Au4zsRBqYwq-wP0zMBqtqRv5S50kUECLol

## 13. Potential Anti-Cancer Benefits

https://www.admaconcology.com/2020/07/04/benefits-of-honey-for-cancer-patients/

https://onlinelibrary.wiley.com/doi/pdf/10.1155/2013/829070

## 14. Honey's Role in Blood Sugar Regulation

https://www.webmd.com/diabetes/honey-diabetes

https://www.ijbcp.com/index.php/ijbcp/article/view/5151

## 15. Cognitive Function & Brain Health

https://balgees.com/blogs/stories/how-raw-honey-helps-memory-and-cognitive-

function?srsltid=AfmBOoph-LKfm0UOh6mVZ1Nn7iiBKA1Ns9yuVv624KVQKm6tpN2Ne28G

https://cymbiotika.com/blogs/health-hub/is-honey-good-for-your-brain-exploring-the-sweet-

 $\underline{connection?srsltid=AfmBOorA3rHbKVFSTWfAEsjNxvEe3\_oJ9YtGRJ9OAatXw3MWLhs2L\_sv}$ 

https://blossomhoney.co/blogs/honey/honey-for-the-head

## 16. Topical & Internal Pain Relief

https://www.sciencedirect.com/science/article/abs/pii/B9780128051863000102

https://www.bjorl.org//en-the-effect-honey-on-post-tonsillectomy-articulo-S1808869421001646 https://www.researchgate.net/publication/313351539 Honey-A Natural Remedy for Pain Relief

## 17. Hydration & Electrolyte Balance

https://www.naturesgold.global/blogs/news/honey-for-hydration?srsltid=AfmBOooqK6Ea9M-

1936 L-3sEsWKxz d8LdxR8tdqVON6E9Ae-8uboi2

https://www.goodrx.com/health-topic/dermatology/honey-benefits-for-

skin?srsltid=AfmBOopIaPyETKISDuxPTb SO0frmAgsygDjgatgWYbuWx4RJsKwyIq2

https://jebas.org/ojs/index.php/jebas/article/view/113

## 18. Heart Health & Cholesterol Management

https://www.wakemed.org/blog/honey-your-heart-whats-buzz

https://www.healthline.com/nutrition/benefits-of-honey#TOC\_TITLE\_HDR\_5

https://pubmed.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/19627212/

https://honeyallday.com/blogs/what-s-buzzing/truly-raw-honey-a-natural-aid-for-improving-cholesterol-levels?srsltid=AfmBOop4B7GmT-xR179LFCiR 1tP1siiRKWAGSiHdisU42O qRIStXAT

## 19. Oral Health: Plaque & Gum Care

https://pubmed.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/30929799/

https://mypenndentist.org/dental-tips/2024/01/09/tooth-and-honey-facts/

https://journals.lww.com/aphd/abstract/2010/08160/antimicrobial\_effect\_of\_honey\_on\_plaque\_m\_icroflora.17.aspx

https://www.moorheaddentalassociates.com/dental-benefits-of-honey/

## 20. Skin Care and Dermatological Uses

https://onlinelibrary.wiley.com/doi/10.1111/jocd.12058

https://www.manipalhospitals.com/whitefield/blog/honey-skincare-benefits-uses-dermatology/

https://www.goodrx.com/health-topic/dermatology/honey-benefits-for-

skin?srsltid=AfmBOoopawMRFo1UYB5whZBZhSBY2g6whVCw73ZpgRfyq66ARYT0FXmn

#### 21. Honey as a Natural Energy Booster

 $\frac{https://shivaorganic.com/blogs/organic-living/natural-energy-with-honey-ditch-the-coffee-and-grab-a-spoonful-of-honey-1?srsltid=AfmBOopQdVRvnJw\_fpRyYJ97asUC0Cxfxn2Eq0\_M11sv12-JmhQ2ydb2$ 

 $\underline{ https://healthyfly.in/blogs/news/honey-as-a-natural-energy-booster-how-to-incorporate-it-into-your-daily-routine}$ 

## 22. Improving Sleep Quality Naturally

https://oregion.in/blogs/news/honey-for-better-sleep-how-it-works-and-how-to-use-

<u>it?srsltid=AfmBOorGoQfMvmod2yW2CIRxUR9yureWO2pC8E8VXIXhjWlGwxdVIYoK</u>

https://ctv.veeva.com/study/honey-to-improve-sleep-quality

https://www.potsandpans.in/blogs/articles/sweet-dreams-can-honey-really-improve-sleep-

quality?srsltid=AfmBOoqykmvtTwqvgcg4DAoFIPyCbl8sW39k\_Pi1cozNmvgaUx0Xh-YW

# 23. Mood Enhancement & Stress Reduction

https://honeyallday.com/blogs/what-s-buzzing/how-honey-can-brighten-your-mood-in-the-dark-

days?srsltid=AfmBOoqvF-O4TRDyKrI1s29GL-qNoBxlUAwKVc\_pCiKgoe1bP4ok76Po

https://honeyngreens.co.uk/blogs/news/how-you-can-improve-your-mood-with-

 $\underline{honey?srsltid=AfmBOoqirW2gXQUtoAVjxoXtBXcoBcIZYBIJEGZ\_1mcOEZLfdUJtl2aQ}$ 

https://www.weekshoneyfarm.com/blogs/news-1/does-consuming-raw-honey-reduce-stress?srsltid=AfmBOoo6XBcJyZZ7GTZ5Wz-sZqAHHtoQdOJVBpG0-ApM7KM4CE2nrbi3

#### 24. Different Types of Honey and Their Potency

https://pahadiamrut.com/blogs/blogs/types-of-honey-and-

benefits?srsltid=AfmBOopjSphd5HnLAcnthhY1JdIRgf5E8DHlMWk-KAD8TC50Ynsp0fpv

https://www.royalbeebrothers.com/pages/type-of-honey-and-

benefits?srsltid=AfmBOopj\_cQwIS9kcw5ewU-4tcG60NDerJu6mR7T250uic3q9SHdL7B6

## 25. How to Use Honey Medicinally (Dosage & Methods)

https://www.webmd.com/vitamins/ai/ingredientmono-738/honey

https://www.drugs.com/npp/honey.html

## 26. Scientific Studies and Modern Research

https://link.springer.com/chapter/10.1007/978-981-15-6799-5\_8

https://manukaaustralia.org.au/science/

## 27. Precautions & Contraindications

https://www.apicolturalaterza.it/gb/blog/honey-benefits-uses-and-contraindications-b196.html

https://www.1mg.com/ayurveda/honey-

13?srsltid=AfmBOoqGM2nI7SABUWfjw5Wq | X9eDQJkJqtTJ7 ZhaxplpEP6QGDKfI&wpsrc=Google+

Organic+Search

https://www.tuasaude.com/en/benefits-of-honey/

https://nirogstreet.com/blogs/hi/vaidya-corner/honey-medicinal-uses-and-

precautions?srsltid=AfmBOopfNRs6m5KhArfQ7EH9JMcNzmV7IHvjnGvFU7bU0YB182bJv8ZN

## 28. Nature's Sweet Medicine

https://www.1mg.com/articles/the-sweet-medicine-8-reasons-why-honey-is-so-good-for-you/

# MEDIFIT EDUCATION'S



# THE HEALING POWER OF HONEY



ISBN - 978-81-976189-7-0

A Therapeutic Guide to Ancient Remedies and Medicinal Benefits

# READING THE HEALING POWER OF HONEY

This book offers a comprehensive exploration of honey's remarkable health benefits, backed by historical wisdom and modern squence.

The book delves into honey's rich medicinal legacy, from its ancient use in wound healing to its scientifically proven antibacterial, antifungal, and antiviral properties. Readers will gain insight into honey's nutritional richness, including its potent antioxidants that combat oxidative stress, its anti-inflammatory effects that soothe chronic conditions, and its ability to enhance immune function.

The book also highlights honey's role in digestive health, acting as a prebiotic to support gut flora, while its natural enzymes aid in digestion and stomach relief. Additionally, it examines honey's surprising benefits in blood sugar regulation, cognitive function, and even potential anti-cancer properties.

Practical chapters guide readers on proper medicinal usage, dosage, and precautions, while sections on skin care, oral health, and pain relief provide actionable remedies. With a focus on different honey varieties and their unique potencies, this book serves as an essential guide for anyone seeking natural, evidence-based ways to improve overall wellness—proving that honey is far more than just a sweetener, but a powerful, multifaceted medicine.





# **MEDIFIT PUBLISHING HOUSE**

A VENTURE OF MEDIFIT BIOLOGICALS PRIVATE LIMITED MEDIFIT EDUCATION, PRABHADEVI, MUMBAI, INDIA



WWW.THEMEDIFIT.COM